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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

ARERREZA

Registered Office
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
28th Floor, Emperor Group Centre

288 Hennessy Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Key Dates
Annual Results Announcement 23 June 2020
Final Dividend HK$0.030 per share

— Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 26 August 2020
(before 4:30 p.m.)

27 and 28 August 2020
(both days inclusive)
28 August 2020

11 September 2020

18 August 2020

12 August 2020
(before 4:30 p.m.)

— Book Close Dates

— Record Date

— Payment Date

Annual General Meeting

— Latest Time to Lodge Transfers

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed
form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order to
protect the environment, the Company highly recommends the
shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report.
Shareholders may have the right to change their choice of
receipt of our future Corporation Communications at any time by
reasonable notice in writing to the Company or the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited,
by post or by email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

Revenue 1,143,230 1,381,335
WA
Gaming Revenue 926,845 1,136,856
BRUA
— From Gaming Concourse 623,226 664,826
REBEXE
— From VIP Room 267,961 429,423
REEERE
Hotel Revenue 216,385 244,479
SBE WA
Gross profit 614,150 838,191
EF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 263,915 367,492
RABEB AL EA
Basic earnings per share HK$0.21# 7T HK$0.297%8 7T
SREKXER
Total dividends per share LLED S HK$0.08278 7T
SR EREE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEwm ROt

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) principally
engage in provision of entertainment and hospitality services in
Macau.

MARKET REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”), the Sino-US
tensions and the outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19;
the “Pandemic”) have resulted in the most drastic economic
slump over the past two decades. Due to the Pandemic,
stringent travel restrictions and health control measures upon
arrivals were imposed; the whole gaming services in Macau was
even compulsorily closed for 15 days in February 2020,
resulting in a significant drop in visitation in Macau. During the
first quarter of 2020, visitor arrivals to Macau were only 3.2
million, down by 68.9% year-on-year, while Macau’s gross
gaming revenue was MOP30.6 billion, significantly declined by
59.9% and 57.7% year-on-year and quarter-on-quarter,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overall Review

As a result of the decline in the number of visitors and weakening
market sentiment, the Group’s revenue decreased by 17.2% to
HK$1,143.2 million (2019: HK$1,381.3 million). The Group’s gaming
revenue decreased by 18.5% to HK$926.8 million (2019:
HK$1,136.8 million), accounting for 81.1% (2019: 82.3%) of the
total revenue. Profit for the Year attributable to the owners of the
Company was HK$263.9 million (2019: HK$367.5 million). Basic
earnings per share were HK$0.21 (2019: HK$0.29). The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board” or “Directors”’) recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.030 (2019: HK$0.054) per
share. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.030 (2019:
HK$0.028) per share, the total dividends for the Year are HK$0.060
(2019: 0.082) per share.

S
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Capital Structure, Liquidity and

Financial Resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong
financial position with aggregate of bank
palances and cash, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits of
HK$3,544.3 million (2019: HK$2,982.8
million) as at 31 March 2020, which are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar
and United States dollar. The Group
funded its operations and capital
expenditure by cash generated internally
from its operations. The Group’s foreign
exchange exposure risk mainly arises
from its assets denominated in Renminbi.
The Group closely monitors its overall
foreign exchange exposure, and adopts
appropriate measures to mitigate its
currency risk when necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 March
2020 were HK$3,762.3 million (2019: HK$3,355.4 million) and
HK$443.7 million (2019: HK$561.8 million), respectively. As at
31 March 2020, the advances from non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary of the Company amounted to HK$39.0 million (2019:
HK$46.2 million), which was denominated in Hong Kong dollar,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable at the discretion of non-
controlling interests and availability of surplus fund of the
subsidiary. The Group was in a net cash position as at 31 March
2020 and hence its gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided
by total equity plus net debt) was zero (2019: zero).

During the Year, the Company had repurchased 24,585,000
shares (the “Repurchased Shares”) of its own shares from the
market using internal resources, at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$38.5 million and an average price of
HK$1.567 per share. The Repurchased Shares had been
cancelled during the Year, and hence the total number of issued
shares of the Company right after its cancellation was reduced
by about 2.0% to 1,234,240,983 (2019: 1,258,825,983) and its
issued share capital was HK$123,000 (2019: HK$126,000).
Having considered the Group’s strong cash reserves, the
Directors believe the share repurchases would enhance value to
the Company’s shareholders and benefit the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.
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Grand Emperor Hotel
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2020, fixed assets with carrying values of
approximately HK$2.1 billion (2019: HK$2.2 billion) were
pledged to two banks as security for banking facilities of a total
of HK$520.0 million (2019: HK$520.0 million). In addition, the
Group has a bank deposit of HK$0.3 million (2019: HK$0.3
million) pledged as a security deposit for the use of ferry ticket
equipment provided by a third party. There was a pledged bank
deposit of HK$43.7 million for obtaining a bank guarantee in the
amount of MOP45.0 million (equivalent to HK$43.7 million) in
favour of Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A. (“SJM”) for the
Group’s fulfilment of all its obligations, in particular for
reimbursement by the Group to SUM of the salaries and benefits
for SUM gaming operation employees who work in the casino
where the Group provides services to SUM, as stipulated in the
service agreement between SIM and the Group. The pledge for
this bank deposit was released at the end of the Year upon
expiry of the security.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group currently operates two hotels, Grand Emperor Hotel
(“GEH”) and Inn Hotel Macau (“IHM”), in Macau. GEH, the
Group’s flagship project, on the Macau Peninsula, is an award-
winning 26-storey gaming hotel with a gross floor area of
approximately 655,000 square feet and 311 guest rooms. It has
six gaming floors, covering over 130,000 square feet, and offers
slot machines as well as gaming tables in the gaming
concourse and the VIP room. In addition, GEH offers a wide
range of amenities including fitness centre, sauna and spa
facilities, as well as five restaurants and bars boasting fine
cuisines from all around the world. With strong commitment to
providing guests with unparalleled entertainment and hospitality
experiences, the Group delivers consistently top-quality services
that translate into high levels of customer satisfaction and
loyalty.

Located at the heart of Macau’s Taipa Island, IHM is a 17-storey
hotel with a gross floor area of approximately 209,000 square
feet, and 287 guest rooms. IHM creates a comfortable
experience, catering to the lifestyles of both leisure and
business travellers. Through extending coverage from the
Macau Peninsula to Taipa, IHM enables the Group to fully
capture the potential of Macau’s hospitality market.

In November 2019, the trademark “Z& &” has been recognised
as well-known to relevant public in mainland China and obtained
cross-class protection from the National Intellectual Property
Administration, affirming their wide recognition and brand value
in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gaming Revenue

The Group’s casino in GEH is operated under the gaming
licence held by SUM. During the Year, the Group’s total gaming
revenue decreased to HK$926.8 million (2019: HK$1,136.8
million).

Gaming Concourse

The gross win in the gaming concourse was HK$1,113.8 million
(2019: HK$1,187.0 million). Revenue from the gaming concourse
was down by 6.3% to HK$623.2 million (2019: HK$664.8
million), contributing 67.3% (2019: 58.5%) of the Group’s total
gaming revenue. There were 67 (2019: 67) tables in the gaming
concourse. Average win per table per day was approximately
HK$45,000 (2019: HK$49,000).

VIP Room

The Group self-managed a VIP room with 10 (2019: 10) tables.
The rolling amount during the Year declined to HK$10.2 billion
(2019: HK$19.3 billion). Revenue from the VIP room also
declined to HK$267.9 million (2019: HK$429.4 million),
contributing 28.9% (2019: 37.8%) of the Group’s total gaming
revenue. Average win per table per day was approximately
HK$129,000 (2019: HK$207,000).

Slot Machines

With a capacity of 180 (2019: 180) slot seats as at 31 March
2020, the gross win from slot machines was HK$75.1 million
(2019: HK$89.7 million). Revenue from the slot machines was
HK$35.7 million (2019: HK$42.6 million), accounting for 3.8%
(2019: 3.7%) of the Group’s total gaming revenue. Average win
per seat per day was HK$1,148 (2019: HK$1,442).

Hotel Revenue

The Group’s hotel revenue derives from the hospitality income of
GEH and IHM. The hotel revenue was HK$216.4 million (2019:
HK$244.5 million), accounting for 18.9% (2019: 17.7%) of the
Group’s total revenue. As of 31 March 2020, GEH and IHM
provided 311 and 287 guest rooms respectively. During the Year,
the average room rates of GEH and IHM were HK$830 (2019:
HK$888) per night and HK$504 (2019: HK$520) per night, with
occupancy rates of 88% (2019: 94%) and 90% (2019: 93%),
respectively. Total room revenue was HK$93.8 million (2019:
HK$102.7 million). Total food and beverage revenue was
HK$96.5 million (2019: HK$113.3 million), while the rental
income and other revenue totalled HK$26.1 million (2019:
HK$28.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OUTLOOK

Macau has been designated as a global gaming hub by the
Chinese government, while Henggin is one of the major
development cities within the Greater Bay Area. With the further
cooperation between Macau and Henggin, Macau will be able to
seize the market potential and further enhance its leading
tourism position. In light of the expanding middle class, more
comprehensive transportation network as well as the support of
favourable measures for the tourism industry, the Group remains
confident regarding the longer term outlook for Macau.

The unfavourable business environment arising from the
Pandemic and the volatile global economy are likely to
somewhat hinder the development of Macau’s gaming market. In
response to the recent downturn in market sentiment, the Group
will closely monitor the market situation, and promptly adjust
strategies accordingly. As soon as the Pandemic is well
contained, and the travel restrictions and health control
measures upon arrivals are eased, the Group expects that the
suppressed desire for leisure and pent-up consumption demand
will be unleashed, resulting in an obvious rebound on the
number of visitor arrivals. The Group strives to stay competitive
in the marketplace, and anticipates reaping the greatest
benefits when the market revives.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Continuing Connected Transactions

Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Group entered into an
addendum with SJM for the continuation of the provision of
management and promotion services to SUM in GEH casino, as
in the service agreement entered into by both parties on 19
February 2010 (the “2010 Service Agreement”). Pursuant to this
addendum, the term of the 2010 Service Agreement has been
extended to 26 June 2022 while the Group’s entitlement to
service fees and all other major terms under the 2010 Service
Agreement remain unchanged. Details of the addendum were
disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company and
Emperor International Holdings Limited (“Emperor International”)
dated 13 May 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT m R

Impact of the Pandemic

Since the end of the Year, the Pandemic has been spreading
worldwide, causing severe disruptions to global travel. Although
economic activities in the Greater China have gradually
resumed, it is expected that the general market sentiment may
even turn stagnant, as the regional economy outlook remains
clouded. A tough business environment is expected to persist
for some time. Since the duration of the Pandemic is still
uncertain, the Group cannot reasonably quantify its financial
impact at the date of this annual results announcement.
However, a prolonged outbreak may have a material effect on
the Group’s consolidated results of operations, cash flows and
financial positions for the year ending 31 March 2021.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s number of employee was 949
(2019: 1,143). Total staff costs including Directors’ remuneration
and the other staff costs for the Year were HK$449.8 million
(2019: HK$451.7 million). Each employee’s remuneration was
determined in accordance with individual's responsibilities,
competence and skills, experience and performance, as well as
market pay levels. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, retirement benefits and other competitive fringe
benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 133 to
135.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBASZEE

Non-executive Director (Chairperson)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 64, the Chairperson of the
Company. She joined the Company in March 2000. Ms. Luk is
also the non-executive director and chairperson of Emperor
International (Stock Code: 163), which is an indirect holding
company of the Company. She worked in the banking industry
for almost 10 years. Ms. Luk graduated from The University of
Toronto with a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce.

Executive Director

WONG CHI FAI, aged 64, an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991 and has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development and overseeing the financial management of
the Group. He is the Chairman of the Executive Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company as
well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Currently, he is also a director of four listed companies in Hong
Kong, namely Emperor International, Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Limited (Stock Code: 887) (“Emperor W&J”), Emperor Culture
Group Limited (Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture”) and
Ulferts International Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts”), all
being associated corporations of the Company. Having over 30
years of finance and management experience, Mr. Wong has
diversified experience in different businesses ranging from hotel
and hospitality, property investment and development, retailing
of watch and jewellery, cinema development and operation to
entertainment production and investment, manufacturing to
wholesaling and retailing of furniture, financial and securities
services, artiste management as well as media and publication.
Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEBASZEE

Executive Director

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man Seung),
aged 57, an Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Fan joined
the Company in 1991 and has been responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business growth and development as well as
overseeing different functions within the Group. She is also the
Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee, a
member of the Executive Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Currently, Ms. Fan is also a director of four listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely Emperor International,
Emperor W&J, Emperor Culture and Ulferts. Having over 30
years of corporate management experience, she possesses
diversified experience in different businesses ranging from hotel
and hospitality, property investment and development, retailing
of watch and jewellery, cinema development and operation to
entertainment production and investment, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer
by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.

Independent Non-executive Director

YU KING TIN, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2013. He is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yu has worked in various organizations
including international certified public accountants firms and
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is currently one of the senior
management in the finance department of a conglomerate in
Hong Kong. Mr. Yu graduated from the Peking University with a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Law and The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Master’'s Degree in Corporate Finance. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a Certified Tax Advisor and a member of
the Society of Registered Financial Planner.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBASZEE

Independent Non-executive Director

KWAN SHIN LUEN, SUSANNA, aged 53, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2015. She is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as
well as a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Ms. Kwan is also an
independent non-executive director of Hypebeast Limited, the
shares of which were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
previously (Stock Code: 8359) and the listing was transferred to
the Main Board in March 2019 (Stock Code: 150). Ms. Kwan has
a legal practice focusing on corporate/commercial and
corporate finance matters in Hong Kong for more than 20 years,
including mergers & acquisitions, regulatory compliance, public
offerings, private placement of securities and open offers, joint
ventures and securities related compliance. She practices and
specializes as a corporate finance and legal and compliance
lawyer. Ms. Kwan graduated from the London School of
Economics (London).

Independent Non-executive Director

LAl KA FUNG, MAY, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2016. She is
the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Ms. Lai is a Certified Public Accountant and has
been engaged in the audit field for more than 20 years. She is a
Principal Partner of May K.F. Lai & Co. & H.H. Liu & Co., Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Lai is also an independent non-executive
director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
997). She was previously an independent non-executive director of
Emperor W&J until 24 May 2017. Ms. Lai is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and obtained a
Master's Degree of Arts in International Accounting from City
University of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
63 of this annual report. The dividends paid during the Year and
proposed to be paid for the Year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK$0.030 (2019: HK$0.028) per share for
the Year, amounting to HK$37,049,000 (2019: HK$35,871,000),
was paid to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.030 (2019: HK$0.054) per share for the Year, to those
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 28 August 2020 (Friday), subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 18 August 2020 (Tuesday) (“2020 AGM”).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of the
likely future development of the Group’s business are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 13 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 42 to 52 of this annual report and notes 32 and 33(b)
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Events After Reporting
Period” of the Management Discussion and Analysis and in note
40 to the consolidated financial statements, there is no
important event affecting the Company that had occurred since
the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, the Group’s environmental policy and performance,
discussion on the key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2019/2020.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFTHRS

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five years is set out on page 159 of this annual
report.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2020, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. The decrease in fair
value amounting to HK$36,400,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of investment properties of the Group as at 31
March 2020 is set out on page 160 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment
During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of HK$74,882,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out on page 66 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 March 2020 represent the retained profits amounting to
HK$349,775,000 (2019: HK$269,003,000).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chi Fai
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne

Mr. Yu King Tin

Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as
at the date of this report are set out from pages 14 to 16 of this
annual report. Details of Directors’ remunerations are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (“Ms. Semon Luk”) and Mr.
Wong Chi Fai (“Mr. Bryan Wong”) shall retire by rotation at the
2020 AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-
election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2020 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFTHRS

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which
are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and the
directors of the Group.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link to
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives, the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Executive and Non-
executive Directors, internal equity of employment conditions
across the Group and applicability of performance-based
remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid in line with market
practice. No individual should determine his or her own
remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’'s responsibilities, competence and skKills, experience
and performance as well as market pay levels. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salary, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to the financial performance of the
Group and individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in

Securities

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
adopted by the Company (“EEH Securities Code”) were as
follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each of the Company
(the “Shares”)

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests

EE i 515,/ #ElE
Ms. Semon Luk Interest of spouse
Bt FofB#m

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor International. Emperor International is a company
with its shares listed in Hong Kong and as at 31 March
2020, approximately 74.71% of its issued shares was held
by Emperor International Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor
International Group Holdings”). The entire issued share of
Emperor International Group Holdings is wholly owned by
Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) which is held
by First Trust Services GmbH (“First Trust”), being the
trustee for a private discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung
Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”’) who is deemed to
have interests in the said Shares. By virtue of being the
spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk also had
deemed interests in the same Shares.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in EERIFTETHABEZEH

Securities (continued) W (&
(B) Long position interests in associated (B) RMEEHEE 2 SR
corporation
(i) Ordinary shares (i) ZiBhg
Number of % of issued
Number of associated Capacity/Nature of shares interested  voting shares
Name of Director corporation interests AR HBEET
L MEEEE RS 515/ fEmtE ZRIHBE BREERKD%
Ms. Semon Luk Emperor International Interest of spouse 2,747,610,489 74.71%
PEZz+ 1 2R BB (Note)
(Ffat)
Emperor W&J Interest of spouse 4,290,850,000 63.29%
R ERIRE [ (Note)
(Ffzt)
Emperor Culture Interest of spouse 2,371,313,094 73.80%
HENILEZE BB m (Note)
(Ffzt)
Ulferts Interest of spouse 600,000,000 75.00%
[ FofBtnm (Note)
(Ktzt)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Emperor International Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29%
Vanessa 2R BmEAA
(“Ms. Vanessa Fan”")
seeuELt (BEkt))
Mr. Yu King Tin Emperor W&J Beneficial owner 80,000 0.001%
REXRKE HEBRIRE BEmEAA
Note: These shares were ultimately owned by the respective KiaE . ZERMTIEERETAAZER
private discretionary trusts which are also founded by SEBELTTARTAN) &EHE
Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. BoERELLABIELZR
Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in B IR EAEEMEBRKRD
the same shares. By R ©
(ii) Debentures (i) 1EfE:E
Name of associated Capacity/Nature of Amount of
Name of Director corporation interests debentures held
g EBEERTE 51, #E=EME FrfsRiEEEER
Mr. Bryan Wong Emperor International Interest of controlled HK$2,000,000
=it HEFHE corporation 2,000,000 7T

PR EREE 2 Bk
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in

Securities (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Share Options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 15 August
2013 (“Share Option Scheme”). Particulars of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption
and up to 31 March 2020.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at the
end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other

Persons’ Interests in Securities

So far as is known to any Director or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 March 2020, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest
and short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company were as follows:
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FERRREMALZES

Interests in Securities (continued) ¥ (&
Long positions in the Shares i z%E
Number of % of issued
Shares interested voting Shares
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests HARED HEET
RREE HE g/ it ZRIEE BEREERHD%
Emperor International Interest in a controlled corporation 851,352,845 68.98%
HEER NZEGNEE P 2 R
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 851,352,845 68.98%
B RE R NRESEEPZ #m
First Trust Trustee of a private discretionary trust 851,352,845 68.98%
MWAZ#EFEZZEA
Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of a private discretionary trust 851,352,845 68.98%
BiELT FAAZREFEZBIIIA
Note: These Shares were the same Shares as those set out under s . ZERMABLIXTEELRTETHRAE Y
Section (A) of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in BEERD (A —BFFFEET LW AESR
Securities” above of which Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests. 7 MBI, o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors or P& _FIREZ SN 72202038310 » =)
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person HRNATETEBTHAEL ARBEMHEMA LT
or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of g xE(ESKAEAANTETETHAERIN I
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any (E{EIRR D EFEEKR D RIERE W R AT S
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares {EEB B AR S 2 ERERETNRA ©
as recorded in the DI Register.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business S&FEWNHEFEEZES

As at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors nor their respective  jA2020F3831H » fiEEEoRES B 2
associates was interested in any business which was BAREHEEBEKNER 7 EFENRTRFINA
considered to compete or is likely to compete, either directly or  gEER R (FmBEZNEE) ZEAXEFBN
indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be ¥EAREKAPIES FHIREI(T EHIRE] )
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of [MBFIRE L

Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Confirmation of Independence of BAaAIERITEERH I ZER

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non- X®ATEWEIAATESMNBEILIEHITES
executive Directors of the Company (“INEDs”), an annual (I IEBHITESE ) EHE FHIRAFE3.131&
confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the &R FEBIIMEREZE - ANBRE G
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs are gy IFRiTE=SE945E T A LT o
independent.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

Company'’s Listed Securities

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of 24,585,000
Shares at an aggregate consideration of HK$38,513,250 (before
expenses) on the Stock Exchange. All such Repurchased Shares
were subsequently cancelled during the Year. As at 31 March
2020, there was a total of 1,234,240,983 (2019: 1,258,825,983)
Shares in issue.

Details of the Repurchased Shares during the Year are as
follows:

BhBER

A QT 2 A BRI R ERIE A BB EAN &
ABBRLOIMRERRUEHBG 2 E%
ME AT -

BBhol - HES BRIz AR L
Bifs s

MREAFEE ZRRABRBZFIUERER
38,513,25078 7t (R 51 FE3%) BB [ol & $£24,585,000
BB -FTEBERMVEBRAFEEDF
5 o R2020E3H31H B TRMHEH A
1,234,240,983 (20194 : 1,258,825,983) fi& ©

RAFERELRN ZFBUT

Aggregate

Number of  Highest price Lowest price  consideration

Shares paid per paid per paid (before

repurchased Share Share expenses)

BERH [=ERE=T [ANE=T BRRE

Month of Shares repurchase g3 {3 > A {5 Z¥H BireEE R RIEE (REHHIR%)
HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

April 2019 201944 7,845,000 1.74 1.68 13,332,700
June 2019 201964 1,270,000 1.65 1.53 2,046,800
July 2019 201974 4,940,000 1.62 1.58 7,821,000
August 2019 2019484 1,755,000 1.45 1.41 2,507,900
September 2019 2019494 4,025,000 1.53 1.41 5,975,250
October 2019 20194108 4,020,000 1.61 1.47 6,095,200
March 2020 2020434 730,000 1.02 1.00 734,400
Total Mt 24,585,000 38,513,250

The repurchases were made with a view to enhancing the net
asset value and/or earnings per Share.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 2R 4EEB R AT
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EFEHE

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

and Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the

Company:

(A) Continuing Connected Transaction —
Master Leasing Agreement (“MLA”)

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

24 May 2018
(1) The Company
(2) Emperor W&J

MLA sets out the framework of the
terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
(“Tenancy Transactions”) regarding
leasing of certain office properties
(including retail shops) to Emperor
W&J for the period from 24 May 2018
to 31 March 2021 with aggregate
tenancy annual caps being set for
each of the financial years ended/
ending 31 March 2019, 2020 and
2021 (“Aggregate Tenancy Annual
Caps”).

Pursuant to the MLA, relevant members
of the Group and any member(s) of
Emperor W&J (as the case may be) may
from time to time enter into any definitive
leasing agreements in relation to any
Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)’). The terms of
each of Definitive Leasing Agreements
shall be on normal commercial terms or
on terms which are no less favorable
available to the Group than terms offered
by independent third parties.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, EENEARRG RHEHEHNZ

Arrangements or Contracts of Significance and W RRRERS (&
Connected Transactions (continued)
(A) Continuing Connected Transaction — (A) HERER S —BHEEHE
Master Leasing Agreement (“MLA”) (continued) (TR E Rl (&
Nature: The terms and rental shall be subject M8 . BKREEASESAFEEHE
(continued) to arm’s length negotiation and be (#B) ULERBEZEMERIREZE
determined based on the condition of BEEHEMUE EREKTIIAR
the properties and with reference to ZYEEFTHHEEETE

the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location,
area and permitted use.

The Company and Emperor W&J were KRB R EEHRIKBE IR
indirectly controlled by private discretionary AEREFXGGIELIRAAIIL
trusts which are also founded by Dr. Albert AN) B EES - EIt BiE L™
Yeung. As such, Emperor W&J was a FRAE14AE » HEFHRIKE A
deemed connected person of the Company AT ZARVERIEA L > HABTR
and the transactions contemplated under EMERETZIRZ2BRER
the MLA constituted continuing connected Bl FFEBRIER 7 o L AT
transaction of the Company under Chapter FIREEHFULE ZAAZHERE
14A of the Listing Rules. Ms. Semon Luk SAEERTmAZBEA B
had deemed interest in the MLA by virtue WRANRBEEGZETER
of being an associate of the eligible e

beneficiaries of the private discretionary
trust controlling Emperor W&J.

During the Year, the aggregate amount PRARFE > HE 2B FRRENH
of the Tenancy Transactions with HEEREBREIHEER S 24858
Emperor W&J or its relevant members 74,639,000/ 7T ©
was HK$4,639,000.

Completion: 2 August 2018, whereupon the Aggregate 5ERY :  2018FE8H2H B EEE £
Tenancy Annual Caps had replaced all the RENAEARBMRBERZ I
then annual caps previously obtained by REFMBEZMBEEREE L
the Company for the Tenancy Transactions. fR o

Announcement: 24 May 2018 D& 2018F5824H
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, EEREARS THHEHZ
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance and B KRRERS (&
Connected Transactions (continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transaction — (B) IFEMER G —ERAKEHE
Service Agreement in relation to the operation YRELSHE Z RS 1 5% (TARFS 13
of GEH (“Service Agreement”) =1)

Date: 19 February 2010 HEF: 2010828 19H
Parties: (1) Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), an A (1) ARBcEEEENB A
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary BRFRERAE (TRE])
of the Company
(2) SJM, a company incorporated in 2) ‘}Qﬁﬁ’—ﬁaﬁﬁ’:‘i@ﬁ%}ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
Macau, which is principally engaged ZRE EBFRORPINERE
in gaming business in Macau and is KRS B7NR AR
one of the six concessionaires/ EREGEEEH 2 HE
subconcessionaries licensed to AHAB RAEAM AT Z
carry on casino operations in —e BfEEALuck United
Macau. SJM has 19.99% equity 19.99% 2 &1
interest in Luck United
Terms: From 1 October 2009 to termination R B2009F108 1 HIBEE TS+
upon occurrence of certain events, BEBIIE  BIERIBREA
including the expiration of SJM’s B EGREBET ZBREEE
gambling license under the Gaming R20205-3H 31 H @Mt 8%
Concession Contract on 31 March 2020 REERERIR L AR —T378
or any earlier termination thereof or B IEEFS o

winding up or cessation of business of
either party.

Nature: The provision of services comprising HE: XRMBRFBIEHEHEAR SRR
management services and promotion [EREERRT (BIE SRR
services by Tin Hou to SJM in relation KEERY) (&SRB ™M
to the operation of GEH (“Services”) ARERIEEZEBEHRN AR
whereas Tin Hou together with the B(AAEZRRAMBRABH
nominated junket promoter (a fellow RABIZERR) BAESDE
subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly-owned ERSEAEEEESREER
by the Company) shall be entitled to a R BB e R AR 1B R 18
share of the gross win and gross loss in W EARESEBERRE 2 —1TIR
respect of the monthly operating FEEMx-

performance of the gaming area of
GEH and bear all necessary operational
expenses in relation to the operation of
the gaming area.

During the Year, the Group’s net receipt RAFEE > AEEFRE &8
amount under the Service Agreement T 2% W m #723,823,0007%
amounted to HK$723,823,000. JT°

Remark: SJM had counter-signed the addendum . BRER2020FE58 138 B INEAR
to the Service Agreement on 13 May I ZE T TGS ) LIB20204F
2020 lor e continuatiop ol ihe 4518 22022 0RO BR

U 132 48 (1 2 ) ¥

April 2020 to 26 June 2022, details of ""T—"‘fhf;\j*;ﬁﬁi% ﬁ%ﬁif’?ﬁ
which were set out in the announcement ?Jﬁ:$4‘a’\9&£ﬁm% ':'\ﬂ%
jointly published by the Company and 2~ H H3 A202055H13H 2
Emperor International dated 13 May =
2020.
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements
Save as “Rental income from a related company” (under the
MLA) in the amount of HK$4,693,000 for the Year as shown in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements which
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other transactions as
shown in this note are connected transactions exempted from
announcement, reporting, annual review and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above non-exempt connected
transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempted

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
non-exempt continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”) in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor had issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s
Letter had been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive

Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs had
reviewed the CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and had confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance which was significant in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company, or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers represented 84.9% (2019:
86.2%) of the Group’s total revenue. The largest customer
accounted for 81.2% (2019: 82.5%) of the Group’s total revenue
and is the operator of VIP room, mass market hall and slot
machine hall who paid fee for the services rendered by the
Group during the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented less than 30% of total purchases and
services received by the Group during the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (to the knowledge of the Directors, owning more
than 5% of the Company’s issued Share), had any beneficial
interest in the share capital of any of the above major customers
and suppliers of the Group.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 31 to 55 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor
A resolution will be submitted to the 2020 AGM to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 23 June 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXEELRS

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards the
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For the
Year, the Company had fully complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

The Board

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2020, the Board comprised six Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Company, two Executive Directors and three INEDs. The Board
considers that this composition ensures a strong independent
element with a balance of power and influence between
individuals on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. The biographies of the Directors are
set out from pages 14 to 16 of this annual report under the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive

Ms. Semon Luk has been appointed as the Chairperson since
2000 and provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information and are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the board
works effectively and performs its responsibilities. She holds
meetings without the presence of Executive Directors with the
INEDs at least once a year.

Both Mr. Bryan Wong and Ms. Vanessa Fan are responsible for the
Group’s strategic planning, business growth and development.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well-recognized experience
and expertise in legal and compliance, accounting or auditing
fields who contribute impartial view and make independent
judgment on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of
them has been appointed for an initial term of one year and
shall continue thereafter on a yearly basis subject to early
termination with written notice being served by either party. The
terms of the INEDs are also subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election provision under the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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The Board (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
The Company had received a confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted
by the Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of
them to be independent by reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications of the
Company that disclose the names of Directors.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (comprising all the Executive Directors of the Board)
and has been delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate
business policies and make decision on key business issues.
The Executive Committee shall have all powers and authority of
the Board except the following matters as set out in a “Formal
Schedule of matters reserved for and delegated by the Board”:

e determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;
e approving annual and interim results and financial reporting;

e declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;

e approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

e approving publication of the announcement for notifiable
transactions under the Listing Rules;

e approving non-exempted connected transactions/non-
exempted continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place form time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the Listing Rules;

e approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval as stipulated under the Listing Rules;

e approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

e approving the establishment of Board committees;

e approving policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited to
risk management policy, remuneration policy and corporate
governance policy;

e approving financial assistance to Directors;
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EXEELRS

The Board (continued)

Delegation to the Management (continued)

e ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions; and

e approving such other matters or transactions as specified
by the Board or as thought fit by the Committee or as
required by all applicable laws, rules and regulations from
time to time.

Induction, Support and Professional

Development of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of
disclosure of equity/business interest of the Group and such
induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All
Directors have been updated on the latest developments of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed
by the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
provision A.6.5 on Directors’ training. During the Year, each
Director had participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/workshops/reading
materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company.

Name of Directors

EHE (&)

BETEIRRE (18

o TMREAAEIEE WEPE 5T R 75 B HR A
BEZEIR BT B R&E 153518 &
EEZREN &

s HMESEZRENLEGI/BEGIM
BEARERBER  RBIRAEGIFTREZ
BREMEIRNS o

ESZRE - ZEBREXRERE

FIEEFHCEREEREEESF ZHER
B BRRES ZAHREG IR0 - R
FHNmiRBEZ SERAEREB ZBRE
SIEkb M EESERER > T
WRAHERHZSMEEE AN G -2REF
e LEHRMREMBEREEE R R
ERRMER EMERES > PRFINEES
HREFCXEARRZEH EFIERTIE
o EEFAAEERR MEGEERESK
BIEEERUGHERESERBDAITHE
8 BERBARAREE-

EFEED RECBTEEERTRIRNS
A6 5IRBRIERIEIIZ TR - NAFEE » BE
SE2AREERER  BRHFEARAUT
TREZENE TR/ BEME LSRR
BATRE 2 MR i BE » T B A2 A B HE
FlACER °

Topics on training covered

EENUE FriRE 2150 £
Ms. Semon Luk (1) corporate governance
Pzt TEER

Mr. Bryan Wong (2) finance

b e B 75

Ms. Vanessa Fan (38) regulatory
BYL BE

Mr. Yu King Tin (4) industry specific
RERLLE e

Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna

BAEExt

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May

RRBZL
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EXRERRS

The Board (continued)

Relationship Between the Board Members
None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

Directors’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of any legal action against the Directors.

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment
The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is
set out below:

EFXg(#)

EZEMEMZMG

BB G A R EEMGR (DTN %
% RBREMEX AR -

EFEZRR
AATEHEETEGEH 2R RN
fEiEE > RIR % o

EFZHERIRFRRZA
AEFEELFETIEEZBERINT

No. of meeting attended/held

tEes/ SreEnY
Corporate
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Governance Executive General
Name of Directors Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meeting
ESfy Bz BNEEY  §MZEE  REZEe (ME¥ELREE #iESe REAE
Non-executive Directorand ~ JFAFTESRTE
Chairperson
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon BhEYt 56  NARER  NATER  NATEE  NATER  NATER i
Executive Directors HnEs
MrWong ChiFei(Note 1) St (Hit1) 55 NARER 1 NAREE  NATER 18/18 i
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa  BEUE% £ (Mfz£2) 55 NIATER NIA FER /1 111 18/18 1
(Note 2)
Independent Non-executive  BiFFHTES
Directors
Mr. Yu King Tin (Note 3) SEXLLE (H39) 565 38 1 NATER i NATER i1
Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna ~ BE& % £ (fzt4) 55 33 NATER i i NA RER 1
(Note 4)
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May PRBLL (W) 5/5 33 i " NATEE  NATER 11
(Note 5)
Total number of meefings held 785 742H 5 3 1 1 1 18 1
Notes: ibg::
1. Chairman of Executive Committee 1. BITZEEXRFE
2. Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee 2. EEBEAZERIEE
3. Chairman of Audit Committee 3. BREEGIRE
4. Chairperson of Nomination Committee 4. EBREZEGXRE
5. Chairperson of Remuneration Committee 5 HMWEZEEFFE
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EXEELRS

The Board (continued)
Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment

(continued)

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and
is satisfied that each Director had been spending sufficient time
in performing his/her responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well
as all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to
the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. For all other board meetings, reasonable notice was
given. Board papers and related materials which provide
appropriate, accurate, clear complete and reliable information
are generally sent to all Directors and relevant committee
members at least 3 days before each Board meeting and Board
Committee meeting (on other agreed period) to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in
sufficient details the matters considered and decisions reached,
with draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors for
their comment and records respectively, within reasonable time
after the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being
kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs,
who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.
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EXEELRS

The Board (continued)

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have been
delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are
INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out below:

1. Executive Committee (set up on 25 November 2014)
The Executive Committee consists of all Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Bryan Wong (Chairman of the Committee) and Ms.
Vanessa Fan.

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are (a)
formulating business policies and making decision (including
entering into transactions) on matters relating to the
management and day-to-day operations of the Company; (b)
making and reviewing corporate/financial/treasury planning,
investment and operation strategy of the Group; (c) discussing
and approving any financial, borrowing, charging and
guarantee commitment to be made by or on behalf of the
Group; (d) approving any transactions, including discloseable
transactions, exempted connected transactions and non-
exempted connected transactions took place from time to time
under the master agreement(s) previously approved by the
Board/Shareholders (as the case may be) under the Listing
Rules; and (e) having all power and authorities of the Board
except those matters specifically reserved for the full Board as
set out in the “Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and
delegated by the Board” adopted by the Board from time to
time.
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EXEELRS

The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

2.

Audit Committee (set up on 15 September 2004)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Yu
King Tin (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Kwan Shin Luen,
Susanna and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the external auditor; (b) reviewing and monitoring the
external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process; (c) approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor;
and (d) reviewing financial information and overseeing the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee held three meetings
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel and/
or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting policies and practices
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of the
annual financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2019 (“Previous Year”’) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2019;

ii. reviewed with senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

iii. performed annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous
Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2019 annual general meeting
(2019 AGM”); and

v. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed the
independence of the external auditor and approved its
engagement.
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EXEELRS

The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

3.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 11 July 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Yu King Tin, both being INEDs, and Mr. Bryan Wong,
being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee
is primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on (a) the Company’s policy and structure of all
remuneration of Directors and senior management; (b) the
remuneration packages of non-executive directors; and (c)
the specific remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board; and

ii. reviewed the remuneration structure/package of the
Executive Directors and senior management and made
recommendation to the Board to approve their specific
packages.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)
The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May, both being INEDs,
and Ms. Vanessa Fan, being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy; (c) reviewing the policy for the nomination of Directors
(“Nomination Policy”) and identifying potential candidates for
directorship; (d) assessing the independence of INEDs; (e)
reviewing the time commitment of each Director in performing
his/her responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election or
re-designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year.
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EXEELRS

The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

(continued)
A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board;

ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors; and

iv. made recommendation the Board on the re-election of
Directors at the 2019 AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims to
achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee will also assess the
merits and contribution of any Director proposed for re-
election or any candidate nominated to be appointed as
Director that will bring to the Board against the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board that would complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted a written Nomination Policy which
aims at assisting the Nomination Committee in identifying and
nominating suitable candidates for directorship based on the
Board Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria, the
nomination procedures for (i) nominating new Director to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making recommendation to
Shareholders regarding any Director proposed for election or
re-election at general meeting; and (iii) nomination by
Shareholders on election of new Director.
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EXEELRS

The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

5.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March

2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”) consists of
five members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), being an Executive Director, Mr. Yu King Tin
and Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna, both being INEDs, a
representative from company secretarial function and a
representative from finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CGC is
available on the website of the Company. The primary
duties of the CGC are (a) reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company (“CG
Policy”) and making recommendations to the Board; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements of the Company; (c) developing, reviewing
and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group on dealings with the
Company’s securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and (e) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this report. The CGC held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the CGC during the
Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation to
the Board:;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the said code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.
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EXEELRS

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that the
Board policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible
for advising the Board on general duties and obligations of
Directors and good corporate governance issues, and has
facilitated induction and professional development of the
Directors. She has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly
complied with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Securities Transaction of Directors

The Company has adopted EEH Securities Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions on no less
exacting terms than the required standards for securities
dealings as set out in the Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
regarding Model Code for Securities Transactions of Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry to
Directors, all of them confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code and
EEH Securities Code throughout the Year.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The
management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects as at the reporting
date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgment and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial
statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis (with
supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary) and
showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for the
Year. The management had provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before it for approval. The
auditor of the Company had made a statement about their
reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’'s Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company in
achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies and
procedures within the Group are with the primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control systems
(“Control Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal control
measures and procedures covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls; and (ii)
risk management functions in the principal subsidiaries of the
Company for the Year as follows:

A. Goals and Objectives
The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective Control Systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
e safeguarding assets;

e ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports;

e promoting adherence to policies, procedures,
regulations and laws; and

e promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

B. Internal Control

(1) Governance Control
The control structure of the Control Systems is set out
as follows:

The Board

e responsible for the Control Systems and reviewing
their effectiveness;

e oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of the Audit Committee;

e ensure maintenance of appropriate and effective
Control Systems;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)
Internal Control (continued)
(1) Governance Control (continued)
The Board (continued)

B.

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk
that the Group is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the management
has performed its duty to have effective Control
Systems. This discussion includes the adequacy of
resources, staff qualification and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

review the nature and extent of significant risks,
and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment;

review and discuss annually with significant control
failings or weaknesses that are identified by the
auditors; and

consider major findings on internal control matters
(if any) raised by external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board.

The management (includes heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Control Systems
properly and ensure the Control Systems are
executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
their day-to-day operations;

give prompt response to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or
external auditors; and

provide written confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.
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EXRERRS

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

Internal Control (continued)

(1) Governance Control (continued)

Internal Audit Department

B.

2)

44

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control
Systems in respect of all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance aspects;

alert the management on the audit review findings or
irregularities and advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the
internal controls of the Group; and

report results of internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans to the Audit Committee and the Board
on regular basis.

Operational Control

During the Year, the management is responsible for
analysing the control environment, identified risks
pertaining thereto, and implemented various controls
therein as follows:

Approach taken: The management conducts
interviews with relevant staff members, reviews relevant
documentation of the Control Systems and evaluates
findings of any deficiencies in the design of the Group’s
internal control system, then provides recommendations
for improvement and assesses the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the
Control Systems will be reported to and reviewed by the
Audit Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
They are in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorised use or disposition and ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records that are
in compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and/or external
publication.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

Internal Control (continued)

(2) Operational Control (continued)

B.

Vi.

Vii.

Management information system and technology:
To control over the business activities, it allows close
tracking of various inputs and outputs of the Group’s
business such as inventory, products and customer
relationship and human resources. It also tracks audit
trails in the authorisation system, under which
permissions and responsibility of authorisation are
clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the systems.
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Reports and variance analysis: Reports and analysis iv. BREREESH THHESZSD
of each segment are conducted on regular basis. BREITRRIRE R o
Information flow: The transparent information flow v. EEN: ZENEERMEFR
alerts the management promptly of any deviations. MEEETARE  LUBEH
Benchmarking with historical database and comparisons BEAEEREZ IERT AR
with the same also acts as a detecting device for IR ASEEH AR -
spotting unusual activities.
Safeguarding of assets: Surprise physical count vi. REBEE . BEREFEWA
of cash, chips and client deposits held in casino B/ NNEERESZAFEZR
and coupons for casino are performed by Income T EBBEEREBRESE
Audit Team of GEH and reviewed by Internal Audit EHETRERFIRKATE
Department. To safeguard the assets, CCTV and ZEPIER - AREEE > &8
security systems are installed in each money and 8 T S5 R B K 5
chips exchange counter and casino exit which are HEEHARERKEZRASR
monitored by Security and Surveillance Department. HETZREEIFIEITE
Insurance coverage on the hotel properties is T BEEETEHAMBEYEDN
periodically reviewed by the management for REHERS T BETEE
sufficiency, and to ensure compliance with the terms 6 W ORT & 1R B R AR R
and conditions of the insurance policies. 1B A4 o
Service quality control: Regular review on operational vii. IRFBmEBEES . THASEEE
systems of hotel and gaming business segments to RIEREFHDERIES R LU
ensure the service quality, and questionnaires are FRERBRE WEZEME
provided in different outlets to welcome customers’ ETESAEUBKRE R B
feedbacks for our service improvement. AR TS [ B o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRS

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

Internal Control (continued)

(3) Financial Control

B.

(4)

46

i. proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

ii.  annual budget of hotel and gaming operations is prepared
and approved by the management before being adopted;

iii. monthly financial statements are provided to all
Directors and senior management which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;

iv. regular reports on revenue, marker receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal financial
reports are prepared to the management which
give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s financial performance;

v. consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations; and

vi. daily available fund report is reviewed to monitor
the cash flows of the Group.

Compliance Control
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Control Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of
Inside Information to ensure, with the assistance of
an internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for the
attention of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information until proper dissemination of the
inside information;

i. Policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and
monitored regularly by the CGC as delegated by the
Board;
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EXEELRS

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)
B. Internal Control (continued)

(4) Compliance Control (continued)

R ERRAEREE (B)

WWﬂﬂ(ﬂ
(4) MBS ()

ii. CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company and ensure proper compliance with
all relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules
and disclosure requirements;

iv. Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters. Such arrangement
will be reviewed by the Audit Committee which
ensures that proper arrangement is in place for fair
and independent investigation of the matters; and

v. Anti-money Laundering and Counterterrorist
Financing Policy and Procedures is established
to set out the general framework for combating
crime against money laundering and financing of
terrorism. It provides guideline to prevent the
Group’s employees and clients/customers/
suppliers/vendors/contractors from being misused
for money laundering, terrorist financing or other
financial crime and has set out some indications of
potentially suspicious transactions/activities for
employee’ reference.

C. Risk Management

(1) Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk identification,
risk evaluation, risk management measures and risk
control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks are
evaluated by the Board and management based on (i)
the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group’s
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finance and operations; and (ii) the probability and o B R bRIETTET S
frequency that the risks will occur.
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 2R 4EEB R AT 47
Annual Report 2019/2020 £ #k




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRS

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)
C. Risk Management (continued)

(1) Risk Management Process (continued)

2)

R ERRAEREE (B)

C. REIE (&)
(1) EBEEERE (&

48

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:

e Risk elimination - the management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

e Risk mitigation — the management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

e Risk control and monitoring — it involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable
and how to address those that are not; accidents
and other situations involving loss or near-loss will
be investigated and properly documented as part
of the effort to manage risks.

e Risk retention — the management may decide that
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk
does not increase to an unacceptable level.

Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment. Such
significant risks of the Group together with their
respective key strategies/control measures are set out
below:

a) Changes in social, economic and political
conditions:

Changes and volatility in general economic
conditions caused by China-USA political/trade
disputes, and stringent policies implemented by
PRC Central Government and Macau Government
impacting hospitality and travel related activities in
Macau etc. Any more adverse change in one of the
above situations would have significant impact to
the Group’s business.
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EXERRS

Risk Management and Internal Control

(continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (continued)
a) Changes in social, economic and political
conditions: (continued)

b)

Stay alert to changes in economic and market
conditions in mainland China or global
economy and adjust business strategic plans
to cope with these changes.

Explore opportunities to expand business or
market and broaden the Group’s customer
base.

While keeping high-quality hospitality services,
endeavor to control the expenses and manpower
or reallocate resources in an efficient manner.

Attend more roadshows which are held by
Macao Government Tourism Office in Mainland
China and Asia in order to enhance the brand
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awareness of the Group’s hotels. BIERMmAEHEE o

Occurrence of disaster events: b) EEKNEFM:

Any “Act of God”, natural disaster (e.g. severe TR S BEAKE UNERE

typhoons or inclement weather) or outbreak of AIRE R 5L 8 %5 KR SLERE

contagious diseases such as COVID-19, SARS, (Fn2019= AR m B R~ D+~ 7

Ebola or Avian Flu happening could have adversely BB RS NIREIRIEE

effect on the Group’s business and reputation. HAEBNEBRBEBERT

g o

e Ensure all safety measures as required by o MERHFBIEPIBNER
Hong Kong and Macau governments are fully NEBELEEREI2E
implemented. EEo

e Keep update on development of disaster events e EEXHEEEHMNZME
and follow the instructions and guidance given B EREBRBEFMKR
by Hong Kong and Macau governments and the T~ B PR e At & 78
Stock Exchange as well as other professional AR RE BTN
bodies such as The Hong Kong Institute of EnBEHERBENIET
Certified Public Accountants and The Hong iES LURE S HH K
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries so as to EENTE-
mitigate the impact of the events to the Group.

e Develop an emergency plan, organise proper e FIERZEE ZHEE
insurance and give regular training to our staff IR f E BR ¥ B T 1T
in first aid and knowledge of hygiene and S BERIBRIRGEA
sanitation as well as evacuation procedures to U BB U
deal with occurrence of these events. FEHZE B HEE -

e Create a natural disaster recovery plan which o FHIEBAKERESE
includes recovery instructions, procedures and BIEmMEES s TR RIR
a quick reference guide for departments to use R2HER HEHPIE
in order to respond and recover from the B UEH K E R ET R
disasters. BImiE -
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EXRERRS

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)
C. Risk Management (continued)

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (continued)

50

c)

d)

Renewal of Renewal of SUM'’s operating license and
services agreement:

The Group’s gaming business is solely relied on SUM’s
Concession Contract which has been extended by The
Gaming Inspection and Coordination Bureau to 26 June
2022 and the services agreement with SUM. Termination
of the SUM’s Concession Contract or the services
agreement with SUM for whatever reasons or the
renewal thereof is not granted to or made by SJM or
unfavourable change in the terms of the services
agreement would have impact on the gaming business
of the Group.

e Has concluded with SUM to extend the services
agreement until 26 June 2022.

e Stay alert to the policy and government
practice and the industrial practices and make
changes to the existing business plans or
strategies, as and when appropriate.

e Keep close communications with SJM in this
respect.

Keen competition in hotel and gaming industry:

Increased competition in hotel and gaming industry
in Macau due to opening of more luxury hotels by
competitors as well as increasing in numbers of
VIP rooms, gaming tables and slot machines from
existing casinos and among other Asian countries.
No assurance that the growth of Macau’s tourism
industry would increase in line with or outpace the
supply of hotel accommodation, casino gaming
tables and slot machines and this could adversely
affect the Group’s business.

e Enlarge and expand the footprint of the Group
in sourcing hotel patrons.

e Devote to provide the best personalised
service to the guests in order to give them a
memorable experience; thereby differentiating
GEH from other hotels and enabling them to
make GEH be their first choice when they
come back to Macau.
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EXERRS

Risk Management and Internal Control

(continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (continued)

e)

f)

R ERRAEREE (B)

C. EREHE (%)
(2) EEmBREHS (&)

d) Keen competition in hotel and gaming industry: d) BIERERITEHRFHI

(continued) (&

e Cooperate with travel agencies and airline o HRITHEMERBEE
companies to develop long-haul visitor market. MAZEREREETS

e Launch promotions featuring GEH’s excellent o  DURERGLEEZ EEAL
location to attract guests to extend length of EASHETHER &5
overnight stay, integrating with local tourism EMHRESR LHZE
resources, especially World Cultural Heritage HREEESE K3
scenic spots. BRI R AR o

e Improve marketing strategy and enhance o REFENMES T ERBR I 1158
promotions and publicities from time to time in HERER UEERS
order to encourage existing gaming patrons to BEREFRBHREBRYER
come back to GEH and attract new customers J& KR 5|t R &M Hh &
around the world. Fo

Anti-money laundering (“AML”): e) PBhLEEEREE (TBhLIE%EE)) -

Non-compliance with applicable AML laws would BRER LR AETSE

adversely affect the Group’s business and HAEBEBNEFRBEENT

reputation. il

e Review the existing compliance policies o THIEREIRAEMAIREEL
regularly.

e Comply with the reporting and compliance s BFEERERWREBIR
procedures as request by The Gaming BEEIREZRENRE
Inspection and Coordination Bureau or the HiEF o
compliance department of SUM.

e Stay alert of the industrial practices. o HRITERR-

e Give regular training to the staff. o TEHIRBETRMEII

Credit risk on advances to gaming patrons on ) EIRIFEZEREREF B

unsecured basis: BIIEE R

Increasing competition for gaming patrons might Ham S EEE S B P A6k

create pressure to extend credit on unsecured BEERT) BRAZFEY

basis to these gaming patrons which would ERERERFEENEE

increase exposure to credit risk. fmLEERMRMOES o

e Assess the credit worthiness of customers to o HEELBESR LURER
ensure that credits are made to parties with A5 A e 8% R 4F R R0
good credit history and a good history of BREFNER HRRMES-
performance records.

e Regularly monitor the activities of individual e THREZBAEERRPE
credit account for the management to decide if g UEEEBAEES
the credit facility shall be continued, changed HE -SEREBUHEER
or cancelled. BHo
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EXEELRS

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)
C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (continued)
f)  Credit risk on advances to gaming patrons on
unsecured basis:

e Delegate a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals, and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

e  Perform impairment assessment under expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model upon application
of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually.
The management assessed the ECL for trade
receivables as at 31 March 2020 after considering
the probability of default of those debtors based on
historical credit loss experience, and all available
forward looking information, including but not
limited to economic outlook of Macau and
subsequent settlement of these customers.

D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a written
confirmation from the management on the effectiveness of the
Control Systems of the Group for the Year. The Audit
Committee and the Board, upon reviewing the Control
Systems, were not aware of any significant issues that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of
the Group’s operational, financial and compliance areas of the
Control Systems.

Dividend Policy

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting out
the principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and final
dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attributable to its Shareholders after taking into consideration of
the factors stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash flow
requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development and
investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends or
recommendation on such payment shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not limited
to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of Bermuda and the
memorandum and bye-laws of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXEELRS

Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders and/or potential investors mainly in the following
ways: (a) the holding of annual general meetings (“AGM”) and
special general meetings (“SGM”), if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes to provide opportunities for the
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (b) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press
releases providing updated information of the Group; (c) the
availability of latest information of the Group in the Company'’s
website at https://www.emp296.com; (d) the holding of press
conference(s) from time to time; and (e) meeting with investors
and analysts on a regular basis and participating in investor
road show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the
Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on the
Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
substantial separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2019
AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and notices of other general meetings were
sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the
meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2019 AGM and chairperson/members of
the Board Committee and the external auditor had also attended
the 2019 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll
during the meeting.

Shareholders’ Rights
Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:
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EXEELRS

Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Right to Convene/Call a General Meetings
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The
written requisition (a) must state the object(s) of the meeting,
and (b) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
for attention of the Company Secretary, and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon its
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
the SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for
a day not more than two months after the date of deposit of a
proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition, such
meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended),
either any number of the registered Shareholders holding not
less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such
registered Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to
(a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition
signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six (6) weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less
than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an AGM is called for a date six (6)
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, such
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEANRS

Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director
The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company.

Constitutional Documents
There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

Auditor’s Independence and Remuneration
The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) is
independent and has recommended the Board to re-appoint it
as the Company’s auditor at the 2020 AGM. During the Year,
Deloitte has rendered audit services and certain non-audit
services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it
by the Company is set out as follows:

Services rendered FRiZ (AR TS
Audit services ZEARTS
Non-audit services IERZEARTS
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Fees paid/payable
Bft Rt &M
HK$’000

FHET

3,332
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

WAL EENER S

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT
HOTEL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 63 to 158, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

56 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 2R 44 HEEHG R AF
Annual Report 2019/2020 £k

=2

RREREBERRATDZER
(REREZMR T ZHRAE)
R

FITEBZHINFE3HEEF 158 HREIREH
JEBRAR (TEAR) REMBAT (U T4
BIEEE)) ZREMHRE WESHMBR
R EIEN2020F3A/31H 2 & M B AR &R
HREZHIEFEZGEEn REM2EE
mR N FEEEmEHRAGERERER MU
iz EPHREM T (BREETEZGBRY

£)o

RITRBA FEVBRECRESBIENA
g ERGHAQG)) BHENEEMBRS
ER(TEBMBREEN ) EEMATHKR
B EEEN2020F3831H AR & B AR
nhBEZALEFE SEENGEEMBEXR
BREGSRERE  TERREBATRM
ZIMBIRE L imE o

ERZEB#
KATEBREEBL I AFRMIB AR
R (TEBEER ) BTEL - RIEZFE
Al ATHEERARS BN ELGES
MHREREE — Pl - RIBEEBE ST
E NGB SE S stEnEET R (T5FR ) > &1T
Byt S&%E WEBETRIETHMERE
BIE - AITIRE > RITFTESHEZREESN
KREEEEMDTITHERIBMHER

PR ERSIN
MSRBLEIEASITHE LT > B
B AH B RAPREENEE  ATHEH
B A RRIBRETRIEI S EE R
WERER MF et S B EEEHRRE
Ho



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

WAL EENER S

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters

FEBELEE

Valuation of investment properties

REMEZHE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant assumptions
and judgments involved in the valuation as set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
FITHERBEMEZGEAS—BRAREZSEE  REHN
IR e TS IRRMI AP &L > (h B B R REE R Al o

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties held
for rental under operating leases of commercial
properties in Macau amounted to HK$660,500,000 as
at 31 March 2020. Fair value losses of investment
properties of HK$36,400,000 were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March
2020.

UER S AT IRRMITE 4P EE  1020204E3831H &
ERRBEREYESSHENRFISAFHERRZEE
) 2 75660,500,0008 Lo B EMEANREBEZEIE
36,400,000 0B R EIE2020FE3831HIEFE 4518
m R H 2 E W R R AREST o

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was estimated based on a valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of
qualified professional property valuers using property
valuation techniques with significant unobservable
inputs and assumptions of market conditions. The
relevant inputs and conditions include comparable
market transactions with adjustments to reflect
different locations or conditions, and changes in
market conditions after the outbreak of coronavirus
disease (“COVID-19").

MRS TS IRRMIGEAPTIREE 0 SEEZKEMELAR
BENRE—AEISEREXRY X GEMITUZEGE
KI5 (BRI REANTERGA BB KRET R RER) &
ZYEEIT 2 LEMES  BRAMA BB R R4 B AE
AR B R ZURMRAEMESE R UREREE
7% (20198 A ERL) BEB ZHRES -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FITFIRERBELEER

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation of investment
properties included:

TR EMEGEEZIREEZIEFEE

e FEvaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified
professional property valuers;

THMEEI A EREEELEMN A S EIRE
B

e Understanding the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions applied by
holding discussion with the independent
qualified professional property valuers; and
BB TS EREEYELEMET > U TR
ERNEEREE  FERERRR ; &

e Assessing the reasonableness of the valuation
conducted by the independent qualified
professional property valuers by (i) checking
details of the significant unobservable inputs
including comparable market unit rate of other
similar properties; and (ii) comparing to
relevant market information for the assumptions
of market conditions which include comparable
market transactions with adjustments to reflect
different locations or conditions, and changes
in market conditions after the outbreak of
COVID-19.
BIE()FHEEEAR T BRRE A RS (BEHEME
LZEZ AL TISEE) ;5 K(i)HWEERRHRZIR
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Key Audit Matters (continued) FAfEEZEI1E (&

Key audit matters

FEBELEE

Macau

EURPIREE AR ZME - B RRE R EREE ERETY

We have identified the impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets related to Inn Hotel Macau, which represent a
hotel property of Inn Hotel Macau and the leasehold
land where Inn Hotel Macau is situated respectively
(the “Inn Hotel Properties”) as a key audit matter
due to the significant level of management judgment
involved to determine the recoverable amount of the
Inn Hotel Properties in view of an impairment
indicator of Inn Hotel Properties arising from a
change in market conditions after the outbreak of
COVID-19.

AATHE ERPI R AE 2 ARRIY) = 1428 R sk B R (B R
B (B3 5l 2R P RS A E 2 B S Y 2E kR PR B S
IRz HE it (TRHEEYE))) 2 BET G2 — I8k
BEIZEE  RREEN2019BRAFTHRIEL B HIHRT
SE)5| MRASYEELRENR  BERAEYE
Z P [ElH 28 R EIRE 2 A HI i o

As disclosed in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 March 2020, the Inn Hotel
Properties comprise a hotel property with a carrying
amount of HK$261,457,000 and a leasehold land with a
carrying amount of HK$268,574,000, respectively. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, no impairment
loss has to be recognised on the Inn Hotel Properties as
at 31 March 2020.

ir & R R M SE15% 1671 & > 122020438 31
B BtEEY =D B B iERE(E261,457,0008 702 H
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FITNFIRERBEZEER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to Inn Hotel

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the Inn Hotel Properties included:

FTERBRAEYEREN G2 ZFERE

Understanding the impairment assessment process
of the Group with involvement of the independent
qualified professional valuers engaged by the
Company to estimate the recoverable amount of the
Inn Hotel Properties;

T BAREBZEIUSEREXRGEME G
RAEY = ol ClEREFET SEEZRE
FHEIERT ;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified
professional valuers;

SHMEBU S ERERMGEMZ T 8% BN RFEML;

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
adopted by the management in determining the fair
value less costs of disposal of the Inn Hotel
Properties, including the estimated operating income
and capitalisation rate with regards to the change in
market conditions for COVID-19, with involvement of
our valuation specialists; and
MEEEENEERYBEMEZ ARBEREE
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters

FEBELEE

Pl EZFIE (4)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FITFIRERBELEER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to Inn Hotel

Macau (continued)

SURPIRMBERRMZME B RREREREEERENS (E

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial e
statements, an impairment assessment of the Inn
Hotel Properties is performed by comparing the
recoverable amount of the Inn Hotel Properties to its
carrying value as at 31 March 2020. The recoverable
amount of the Inn Hotel Properties is estimated at the
fair value less costs of disposal of the hotel property
and the leasehold land using property valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs and
assumptions of market conditions including
operating income and capitalisation rate, based on
the valuation conducted by an independent firm of
qualified professional valuers and approved by the
directors of the Company.

IR S A PR R MY EEAPT IR B8 » BB IEY)2E 2 R EET
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 2R 44 HE 5B R AR

Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated
operating income by comparing the estimated
operating income with the historical and actual
performance of the Inn Hotel Properties.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIL SRR S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

WAL EENER S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
23 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ralimkAEMEEIER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

Revenue WA
Contracts with customers ZREK 1,120,106 1,359,333
Leases HE 23,124 22,002
Total revenue BT A 1,143,230 1,381,335
Cost of sales THE A (33,783) (39,513)
Cost of hotel and gaming operations  SAJE & E¥ R 2 A4 (495,297) (503,631)
Gross profit EF 614,150 838,191
Other income Hlg A 96,667 96,140
Other loss HAthEs18 (7,661) (10,920)
Impairment allowance reversed B 5 R E (FEsR) 2
(recognised) for trade receivables BB 385 (35,117)
Fair value changes of investment KREMELANEBEZ
properties k) (36,400) 17,600
Selling and marketing expenses HEMTIGHEEER (212,361) (288,554)
Administrative expenses THER (245,739) (249,695)
Finance costs M ER (2,334) (171)
Profit before taxation FRIR B R A 206,707 367,474
Taxation credit RIE o] 75,738 70,823
Profit for the year FREHEF 282,445 438,297
Other comprehensive (expense) Hihaem FEx) Wam
income
Items that may be reclassified HEOSEEBENDEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmpyEE
Fair value changes of debt FBEMEEWE
instruments at fair value FEANEBEZ
through other comprehensive BEIAZ
income NABEEES (4,721) 329
Reclassification adjustments for HEFBEMEEE
amount transferred to profit FEANEEZ
or loss upon disposal of debt B T ARERE
instruments at fair value through Bm 2 EMDLE
other comprehensive income AR RE 4,009 854
Other comprehensive (expense) FEHME2ME (FEX) WaE
income for the year (712) 1,183
Total comprehensive income FELXEWGLLE
for the year 281,733 439,480
Profit for the year attributable to: (G EE &R .
Owners of the Company KRBHEBAN 263,915 367,492
Non-controlling interests R T 18,530 70,805
282,445 438,297
Total comprehensive income for the FE{SERE L2 EING
year attributable to: 4o%E -
Owners of the Company P N/NEIEZ DN 263,345 371,495
Non-controlling interests IR e 18,388 67,985
281,733 439,480
Earnings per share srR&E
Basic 2K HK$0.21#& 7T HK$0.2978 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR

At 31 March 2020 2020435 31H

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KEY= 14
Property, plant and equipment ER Y 15
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 16
Prepaid lease payments FEHERIE 17
Debt instruments at fair value HEEtMEEmEE
through other comprehensive STEANEEZ
income ERTA 18
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEYIE KB
property, plant and equipment REZBEMNITE
Goodwill mE 19
Current assets MBIEE
Inventories, at cost FE B AE
Trade and other receivables 85 R E MBI 20
Debt instruments at fair value FEEMtMEElE
through other comprehensive FFEANEEZ
income BHITA 18
Prepaid lease payments BEERIE 17
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRIRITENR 21
Short-term bank deposits ZHAIRTT IR 21
Bank balances and cash IR RIS 21
Current liabilities V=N E
Trade and other payables B REMEAR 22
Amounts due to fellow RERRBABRIE
subsidiaries 23
Amounts due to non-controlling R—ERB AR
interests of a subsidiary JEVERS e R IE 24
Taxation payable FE(IRIR
Lease liabilities HEaR 25
Net current assets MBIEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities 2B ERAE &G
Non-current liabilities JERBAE
Lease liabilities HEaRE 25
Deferred taxation IRIEFRIE 26
Net assets BEEFE
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660,500
1,214,068
479,393

35,959

15,086
110,960

2,515,966

15,070
156,495

46,415

348
980,656
2,563,308

3,762,292

140,214
7,377

39,000
254,146
2,936

443,673
3,318,619
5,834,585

26,943
100,643

127,586
5,706,999

696,900
1,237,861

451,413

372,025

16,612
110,960

2,885,771

14,241
245572

96,783
15,980
44,040
300,662
2,638,143

3,355,421

192,384

3,930

46,200
319,253

561,767

2,793,654

5,679,425

111,254

111,254

5,568,171




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RalEIARE

At 31 March 2020 2020435 31H

Bk

Capital and reserves

Share capital %N 27 123 126

Reserves 5 4,696,625 4,576,182
Equity attributable to owners KABVHEB AEL#ER

of the Company 4,696,748 4,576,308
Non-controlling interests JEFERS 30 1,010,251 991,863
Total equity W 4B RA 5,706,999 5,568,171

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 158 were $63EEF158EFfH v oM BRED R
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 2020463230 &&= it /R ISHET) 2 I

23 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: B NIESRREE .
Wong Chi Fai Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Director Director
55 55
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

At 1 April 2018 R2018E4R1H 130 436,765 668 24,582 (834) 287 - 3528370 3989968 1,886,836 5,876,804
Profit for the year FERT - - - - - - - 37492 367492 70805 438297
Falr value change of debt EEEM2ENG
ingtruments at HEVN (v
fair value through other BBIAZAR
comprehensive income EEEH - - - - 3,469 - - - 3,469 (3,140) 329
Reclassification adjustments for HEFBHMZE
amount transferred to profi W EAREE
or loss upon disposal of debt ZERTIARER
instruments at fair value through FER/ENNR
other comprehensive income HEEH - - - - 534 - - - 534 30 854
Total comprehensive income FERENRLE
for the year - - - - 4,003 - - 3674%  3714% 67985 439480
Acquisition of additional interests WE-TEF2ENE
in a non-wholly owned NEZEMER
subsidiary - - - - - - 396,958 - 396958  (962,958)  (566,000)
Ordinary shares repurchased EORHLER
and cancelled (note 27) (27) @) - 4 - - - - (T2811)  (72611) - (72611)
2018 final dividend paid in cash D18FRERE
PeeEST - - - - - - - (73,631)  (73,631) - (73,631)
2019 interim dividend paid in cash M19FTERS
bESEA (@B871)  (35871) (3.871)
At 31 March 2019 12019438318 436,765 396,958 3,713,749 4,576,308 991,863 5,568,171
Profit for the year gyl - - 263915 263915 18,530 282,445
Fair value changes of debt FREM2ENG
ingtruments at SEAREEZ
fair value through other BRIAZAR
comprenensive income EEEY (44)  (4721)
Reclassffication adjusiments for HEFBHMRE
amount transferred to proft WHHEAREE
or loss upon disposal of debt BB ENEE
instruments at fair value through EER/ENAE
other comprenensive income FLE 3,201 802 4,009
Total comprefensive (expense) EERAED WE
income for the year 45 263915 263,345 18,388 281,733
Ordinary shares repurchased and BERFEEER
cancelled (note 27) (H3or) (38,638)  (38,638) (38,638)
2019 final dividend paid in cash M19FRERE
DBRETH (67,218)  (67,218) (67,218)
2020 interim dividend paid in cash X0FHERE
MRS - - (37,049) (37,049 (37,049)
AL 31 March 2020 020538318 436,765 306958 3834750 4696748 1010251 5,706,999
Note: The other reserve of the Group arose from acquisition of additional [ : AEBEMEEABQIEIERESES R

interests in a non-wholly owned subsidiary from non-controlling interests
(see note 39(a)(i)).

FrEWBABZBIINERFIEE (BN
5£39(a)(i)) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

Cash flows from operating activities REREEEZIRERE
Profit before taxation FRIG A A
Adjustments for: FEE

Interest income FEUWA

Interest expenses FEZH

Fair value changes of investment REMERNEEZ
properties e

Impairment allowance (reversed) B 7 FEWGR (#[31)
recognised for trade receivables MR R EEE

Unrealised exchange (gain) loss BIRER (W) B8

Depreciation of property, plant and M HBRRE
equipment e

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERESEZITE

Loss on disposal of debt instruments at HEFBHEMPEIL
fair value through other metEAREBEZ
comprehensive income BB LR ZEE

Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE EEYE
plant and equipment 1% 28 K55 1 2 B5 18

Release of prepaid lease payments FEPRTEHEENIE

Operating cash flows before movements  RetEBEREHF
in working capital KEFERE

(Increase) decrease in inventories FE2Z (gm) R

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

Increase in amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries

85 R 2D
85 REMEIRZHD
RERKERATREAZ
1#11

Cash generated from operations REKSEHZRE
Macau Complementary Tax paid BEACEPIFTERETR
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid) BRE (B8 &8RS
Net cash from operating activities REKEEE 2 IREIFRE

206,707

(94,753)
1,031

36,400

(385)
RREY)

98,543

19,486

4,009

81

367,474

(82,962)

(17,600)

35,117
2,163

103,205
854

184
15,083

269,985

(829)
91,151

(50,152)

3,447

424,418
183
31,415

(23,477)

647

313,602

20

433,186
(1,153)
(90)

313,622

431,943
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEBRENE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

Cash flows from investing activities REREEEBZIRERE
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits RBUZERIRITERR
Proceeds from disposal of debt HEZBHEMEmEIRE
instruments at fair value through other FEAANBEZER
comprehensive income TAZFEMIE

Interest received BUFIE

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposit B IRIRIRITER

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYZE 4B H
and equipment ZPrigak1E

Placement of short-term bank deposits EFEARRRRIRITER

Acquisition of property, plant and BEYE B RRE
equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, FEEBY)ZE 4R LB HE
plant and equipment 2B &

Acquisition of debt instruments at fair BEZBHMEAEWEE
value through other comprehensive NREBEZEHIA
income

Placement of pledged bank deposits EABEBIRITER

Addition of prepaid lease payments AERNEENRE

Net cash used in investing activities AR EGE ZIREFEE

Cash flows from financing activities REMEGTEZRERE
Dividends paid BIREE S
Payment on repurchase of shares FBERIRM 2 IR
Repayments to non-controlling interests of  EBE—FERBAGZ

a subsidiary FEEERG R BN
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEERE
Interest paid BAFE
Acquisition of additional interests of a WEE—EIFEEME
non-wholly owned subsidiary NE)Z BBIME R
Cash used in financing activities ARmEGTESZRE
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R&RRES%ZEM R/
R

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E®RHAV RS EES
of the reporting period ZBEY

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the S #HREAKXZIREKRIIRS
reporting period, representing bank £EBY) BIIR1THERK
balances and cash e
68 f\mperor Entertainment Hotel Limited X 23R4 FEEG R AT
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818,781

390,583
97,046
45,290

51
(1,498,775)

(61,476)

REXLE)

(11,718)
(1,598)

(235,714)

(104,267)
(38,638)

(7,200)
(1,607)
(1,031)

(152,743)

(74,835)

2,638,143

2,563,308

851,284

165,109
78,679

20
(676,430)

(76,649)

(10,341)

(109,502)
(72,611)

(61,400)

(566,000)

(809,513)

(460,367)

3,098,510

2,638,143




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

General

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company’s immediate holding company is
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The
intermediate holding company of the Company is Emperor
International Holdings Limited (“Emperor International”), a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the
shares of which are also listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the
Company is Albert Yeung Holdings Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
which is in turn held by First Trust Services GmbH, being
the trustee of The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY
Trust”), the founder and settlor of which is Dr. Yeung Sau
Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs™)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) have applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of other
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in the current
year have had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases
("HKAS 177), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREMTEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

2. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs™) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 167) (continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or accrued
lease payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis,
to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

i. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application;

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application;

iii. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of
properties in Macau Special Administrative Region, the
People’s Republic of China (“Macau”) was determined
on a portfolio basis; and

iv. used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension and termination
options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2. FERRIEREETE BT

Hong Kong Financial Reporting HEEAN(TEEUBHREE

Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued) ) (%)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are MRAFEEHIE R 2 G R A&

mandatorily effective for the current year BT ERMBHREED (B)

(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued) ERUBRESERNE 165 THE, (TE#
B REERIE165%) ()

As a lessee (continued) TEAEAFAN (B

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously BRI NEAKESHEENHEERME

classified as operating leases, the Group has applied BEaER AEBERYrEAH RS

incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at 1ERAE B B RSNV SERFIZ o« FEARIM

the date of initial application. The weighted average R IPE EERFEA3.50% ©

incremental borrowing rate applied is 3.50%.

Operating lease commitments disclosed at R2019F3B31 BIFBE 2 K EHE
31 March 2019 FRIE
Add: Extension options reasonably certain . AIRIERETEEHRRE
to be exercised
Less: Short-term leases and other leases with A SRR E AR ERYIREREE
lease terms within 12 months from the SRS #8155 1655 K BRREST
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 12@BANEmz MBS

Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental 2B SEAFRITIR2HEESE
borrowing rate

Lease liabilities relating to operating leases R2019F 48 1B EAE B BRE
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 ZEH |16 ERK SR ERRE 2
at 1 April 2019 HE&8E
Analysed as: AP
Current Vit
Non-current JETED
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at R2019F4AR1H  FERZ EREEE
1 April 2019 comprises the following: ZEREEBFEWT -

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases  FERE B FEIRE R FE 16558

recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 SR EEM EREEE 27,666
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments B ERBEEH D8 (M)
(Note) 467,393
495,059
By class: #HEh
Leasehold lands HEL 493,515
Land and buildings THRAEF 1,544
495,059
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREMTEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

2. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs™) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 167) (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands in Macau were
classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 March 2019.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current and non-current
portions of prepaid lease payments amounting to
HK$15,980,000 and HK$451,413,000 respectively were
reclassified to right-of-use assets.

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16,
the Group is not required to make any adjustment on
transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor but
account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from
the date of initial application and comparative information
has not been restated.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts entered
into but commence after the date of initial application
relating to the same underlying assets under existing lease
contracts are accounted as if the existing leases are
modified as at 1 April 2019. The application has had no
impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 April 2019. However, effective on 1 April
2019, lease payments relating to the revised lease term
after modification are recognised as income on straight-line
basis over the extended lease term.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental deposits
received were considered as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applied under trade and other
payables. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the
right-of-use assets and the discounting effect is insignificant
at transition.

The applications have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 April
2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.

Non-current assets ERBEE
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE
Current asset RENEE
Prepaid lease payments FEHEERIE
Current liability mENEE
Lease liabilities HEEaER
Non-current liability JEREEE
Lease liabilities HEaE

For the purpose of reporting cash flows for the year ended 31
March 2020, movements have been computed based on opening
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 April 2019 as
disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

sRE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

2.

Application of New and Amendments to 2.

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs™) (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'’

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions®
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform#*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

% Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments:

add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election on
whether to apply the optional concentration test is
available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs; and

narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services provided to customers and
by removing the reference to an ability to reduce costs.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to all
business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 April 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating
the information;

replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was considered
too broad when deciding what information to disclose
in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 April 2020. The application of the amendments
is not expected to have significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

sRE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs™) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to

the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
The New Framework:

e reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

e discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

e states that the primary measure of financial performance is
profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances
other comprehensive income will be used and only for
income or expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

e discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account,
the reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to
the previous versions of the framework. These amendments
are effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on or
after 1 April 2020. Other than specific standards which still
refer to the previous versions of the framework, the Group
will rely on the New Framework on its effective date in
determining the accounting policies especially for
transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise
dealt with under the accounting standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) which are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at the initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIFFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not longer than an operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

sRE M ERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acaquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating unit
within a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit)
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or
the group of cash-generating units) retained.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including bundle sales for hotel accommodation
and food and beverage, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately to
a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services
to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods
or services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue recognition

The Group provides services to a gaming concessionaire in
Macau under service arrangements for gaming operation in
mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall. The
performance obligation represents provision of gaming-
related marketing and public relation services to the gaming
concessionaire. Revenue from such services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group is entitled to receive its service income according to
the relevant operating performance from the gaming
concessionaire which simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group also provides hotel rooms to customers. The
performance obligation represents provision of hotel
accommodation services for customers. Revenue from hotel
rooms is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time as the Group is entitled to receive its income
according to the relevant operating performance from the
customers and the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs.

The transaction price of food and beverage sales is the net
amount collected from the customer for such goods. The
transaction price for such transactions is recorded as
revenue when the goods are transferred to the customer.
There is no other separate performance obligation identified
except for delivery of goods. The revenue on food and
beverage sales is recognised as revenue when the food
and beverage are delivered and titles have been passed.

The Group has other contracts that include multiple goods
and services, such as packages that bundle food and
beverage and other services with hotel stays. For such
arrangements, the Group allocates revenue to each good or
service based on its relative stand-alone selling price. The
Group primarily determines the stand-alone selling price of
hotel rooms and food and beverage based on the amount
that the Group charges when each is sold separately in
similar circumstances to similar customers.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &{ZE2020%F3531H IEFZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost or deemed cost upon transfer from investment
properties, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item (including the relevant leasehold land under HKFRS
16 or prepaid lease payments under HKAS 17) at the date of
transfer is recognised in OCI| and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to the retained profits.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid
lease payments” (before application of HKFRS 16) in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under fair value model. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
deemed cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs which are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

and right-of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are also allocated to the relevant cash-generating units
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &{ZE2020%F3531H IEFZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill

(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
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generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior 2o
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIFFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in

accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and buildings and motor
vehicles that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of
low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

sRE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|' = Ejﬁ#ﬁﬁlﬁj‘I

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIEFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
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the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases HMA S EAKERE
are classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIFFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) to allocate consideration
in a contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the basis of
their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the original lease as part of the lease payments
for the new lease.

Inventories

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and
other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &{ZE2020%F3531H IEFZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIFFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(ii) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss. All other
changes in the carrying amount of these debt
instruments are recognised in OCI and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt instruments. When
these debt instruments are derecognised, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &{ZE2020%F3531H IEFZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including debt
instruments at FVTOCI, trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank
balances) and lease receivables which are subjected to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experiences, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises a lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these receivables are assessed
individually.

For other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

96

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iiif)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(b)
(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(iv) Write-off policy

98

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 (prior
to 1 April 2019).

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &{ZE2020%F3531H IEFZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Except for debt instruments at FVTOCI, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account. For investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in OCI and accumulated under
the heading of investments revaluation reserve without
reducing the carrying amount of these debt
instruments. Such amount represents the changes in
the investments revaluation reserve in relation to
accumulated loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIFFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and amounts due to
non-controlling interests of a subsidiary) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &{ZE2020%F3531H IEFZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIFFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 Income Taxes (“HKAS 12”) (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition of
the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in OCI
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in OCI or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be used by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operation are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P2

sRE M ERRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREMTEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties situated in
Macau with carrying amount of HK$660,500,000 as at 31 March
2020 (2019: HK$696,900,000) are held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
such investment properties are recovered through sale is
rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised deferred tax
liabilities of HK$82,087,000 (2019: HK$87,563,000) on changes
in fair value of investment properties subject to Macau
Complementary Tax (“CT”), on the assumption that these
investment properties will be recovered through use as at 31
March 2020.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, which may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s investment properties. The Group will first consider
and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived
observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level
2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation
techniques that include Level 3 inputs. At the end of each
reporting period, the designated team works closely with
the independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the
assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the
board of directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIFFE

4,

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

The fair value of investment properties of HK$660,500,000
as at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$696,900,000) was
estimated based on a valuation on these properties
conducted by the independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers using property valuation techniques which
involve significant unobservable inputs and assumptions of
market conditions. The relevant inputs and conditions
include comparable market transactions with adjustments to
reflect different locations or conditions, and changes in
market conditions after the outbreak of coronavirus disease
(*COVID-19”). Changes to the assumptions would result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount of
gain or loss reported in profit or loss.

Estimates of repayment of amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary

The Group’s carrying amount of the interest-free amounts
due to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary as at 31
March 2020 was HK$39,000,000 (2019: HK$46,200,000).
According to the shareholders’ agreements, these amounts
are repayable only when the indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Luck United Holdings Limited (“Luck United”),
and its subsidiaries have surplus fund. Surplus fund
represents available cash within these subsidiaries after
paying all operating expenses and payables, including but
not limited to bank loans and third party loans which are
due for repayment together with the accrued interest. The
carrying amount of the amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary and the deemed contribution by
the non-controlling interests may be adjusted to reflect the
revised estimated cash flows when the Group revises its
estimates of the timing and amount of repayment to the
non-controlling interests based on the cash flow forecasts
and availability of surplus fund of Luck United and its
subsidiaries, and consequently affect the amount of
imputed interest to be recognised in profit or loss, if any,
over the expected life of the amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 2R 44 HEEHG R AF

Annual Report 2019/2020 £k

106

4.

SEEFFIER G FEE
2 EERE (&

EEtFRHELZ T2 KR (E)

REWMEZILE (B)
fR20205F3A31H  REMFEZ R AEE
660,500,00078 7t (20194F : 696,900,000
B7T) HiRE BB S ERE R ML
BETUEGERIS (BRI RERTH
BEROABBRAETRZRR) HZEY
FETZLESE AR A BB KRR
BIERER LR Z T HR 5 URBRAE
& 2R K ik % % (1201978 4K
rarj)lgéﬂézﬁﬂ“@ﬂ ZERRZ

DERENAEARBMEAIANEBES
Fﬁ“ﬂ: HUm sl E R SRR R E IR m A
{EHRIERZE

BEX—RMBLAEZIEERE T IE
2t
7 & B 702020838310 k — R [t B A
Bl IFERE R 2 R BRI RE(E A
39,000,000787T (20194 : 46,200,000787T) ©
REKRRHZE  ZSNEEEREERE
i@ /A= Luck United Holdings Limited
(FLuck United ) R HINB A B B HE &
BEREEE RPEETIEXENBA
B AT —UNEE R 2 R FE SRR (B4 18
RRVREAEBEZRITEMRRE=ZFE
FEEREFIB) BB B - A
LR METARMKRLuck United
HIfB ARz BERE S ERERE  E:]
HHIEERERRIBZ MsHEERE &
ERER > R—REIRE A 2 IEZER RS
ENREERRIEFERERHE R
RER P REEH AR MR RSB TTEEHR
e AR FERFERRR R 1B m g
HNX—RE B A 2 IFEREmRIE
ZHBEHNE WA THEZTEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREMTEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets related to Inn Hotel Macau

In view of an impairment indicator of the hotel property of
Inn Hotel Macau and the leasehold land where Inn Hotel
Macau is situated respectively (the “Inn Hotel Properties”),
arising from a change in market conditions after the
outbreak of COVID-19, an impairment assessment of the Inn
Hotel Properties is performed by comparing the recoverable
amount of the Inn Hotel Properties to its carrying value as at
31 March 2020. The hotel property and leasehold land are
classified as property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets respectively.

The recoverable amount of the Inn Hotel Properties is
estimated at fair value less costs of disposal of the hotel
property and the leasehold land using property valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs and
assumptions of market conditions including operating
income and capitalisation rate, based on valuation
conducted by an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers and approved by the directors of the Company.

The Group believes that no impairment loss has to be
recognised on the Inn Hotel Properties for the year ended
31 March 2020. The situation will be closely monitored, and
adjustments will be made in future periods, should future
market activity indicate that such adjustments are required.
As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amounts of the hotel
property and leasehold land of Inn Hotel Macau is
HK$261,457,000 and HK$268,574,000, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

5. Revenue 5. ITA
(a) Contracts with customers (a) EF &4

An analysis of the Group’s revenue AEBEZIRA DT :

is as follows:
Recognised over time: R —ER R FESD -
Gaming operation: JEEES
- Service income from gaming —- ISR ER 2 ARFEWA
operation in mass market hall 623,226 664,826
— Service income from gaming - BEEEEEER 2R
operation in VIP room WA 267,961 429,423
— Service income from gaming - AT IEBEEER 2 R
operation in slot machine hall WA 35,658 42,607
Hotel operation: MEVAE S
— Hotel room income - BEZEBWA 93,780 102,748
— Others - Hth 1,444 4,283
1,022,069 1,243,887
Recognised at a point in time: 45 E R FESD -
Hotel operation: BIE TS
- Food and beverage sales - BENIHE 96,452 113,260
— Others — Hith 1,585 2,186
98,037 115,446
Revenue from contracts with REEREHWA
customers 1,120,106 1,359,333
Gaming operation TERER 926,845 1,136,856
Hotel operation BT 193,261 222,477
Revenue from contracts with REEREHWA
customers 1,120,106 1,359,333
Transaction price allocated to the remaining MERSHNNIERTRANE
performance obligations for contracts with EZXZEBR
customers
All sales or services rendered from gaming and hotel Bt R AEER IR MNP AN E R
operations are for contracts with an original period of I AREREA—FERUANEL A
one year or less. As a practical expedient under BB EREEDE15E B TRE S
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these T PEREZER TEASEZRZER
remaining performance obligations is not disclosed. RFINE o
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EREMTEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

5. Revenue (continued)

5. QA (&

(b) Leases (b) HHE
2020
HK$’000
FHET
Total revenue arising from leases: BEEEZHEWA -
Hotel operation: BIRZEF
— Operating lease payments that are fixed - BIEKLERENT
2019
HK$'000
FABT
Total revenue arising from leases: BEEEEZHERA -
Hotel operation: BIEZETS
— Operating lease income — property - ETHEWA - Y2 22,002

Segment Information

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) have been identified as the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”). The CODM review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources.

For gaming operation, the CODM regularly analyse gaming
revenue in terms of service income from mass market hall,
VIP room and slot machine hall. No operating results or
discrete financial information is presented to the CODM in
relation to the above analysis. The CODM review the
revenues and operating results of gaming operation as a
whole and have identified the operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments as gaming
operation and hotel operation.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 2R 4EEB R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

6.

Segment Information (continued)

The segment information reported externally is analysed on
the basis of their types of services supplied by the Group’s
operating divisions which is consistent with the internal
information that is regularly reviewed by the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the
Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise
the Group around different services provided by the Group.
The principal activities of the operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

Gaming operation - Mass market hall, VIP room and
slot machine hall operations
and provision of gaming-
related marketing and public
relation services in the casino
of Grand Emperor Hotel
(“GEH”) in Macau

Hotel operation - Hotel operation in GEH and Inn
Hotel Macau including property
investment income from
investment properties in these
hotels in Macau

The CODM assess the performance of individual operating
and reportable segments based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation,
loss on disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI, exchange
loss at corporate level and fair value changes of investment
properties (the “Adjusted EBITDA").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREMTEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

6. Segment Information (continued)

Inter-segment revenue is charged at a price mutually

agreed by both parties.

Information regarding the above segments is

below:

Segment revenues and results
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Segment revenue

DEBA

reported

External revenue HIMIA

Inter-segment revenue PEERA

Total =l

Segment result based on the Adjusted  EFEREBITDAZ
EBITDA PEXE

Bank interest income HITHEIA

Interest income from debt instruments ~ BBEMEEREHEAAER
at FVT0CI ZERTAZFISHA

Loss on disposal of debt instruments at  HEFBHME ARG EAL
FVTOCI BEZERIRZER

Depreciation of property, plant and WE BB RREZNE
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEEZNE

Exchange loss at corporate level PEEENERESR

Fair value changes of investment RENEANBEZEY
properties

Finance costs MHER

Profit before taxation BRAR AR

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2 2iR4EEHG R AT

6. SEEH ()
SRR LE S 1375 1 2 FHS R o

AR LSBT ERZRAT ¢

DHEWARES
#E20204F3531 HILEE

926,845 216,385 1,143,230 - 1,143,230
- 2,101 2,101 (2,101) .

926,845 218,486 1,145,331 (2,101) 1,143,230

239,459 40,928 280,387 280,387

75,070
19,683
(4,009)

(98,543)

(19,486)
(7,661)

(36,400)
(2,334)

206,707
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

6. PHEEHN (&)
DEWA R R4 ()

6. Segment Information (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 By F2019F3H31HIEFE
Gaming Hotel
operation  operation Total  Elimination Consolidated
BYEE  EEEE &t Eaf &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TR
Segment revenue PERA
External revenue HIMIA 1,136,856 244479 1,381,335 - 1,381,335
Inter-segment revenue DEBHA - 1,621 1,621 (1,621) A
Total At 1136856 246,100 12382956 (1621) 1,381,335
Segment result based on the Adjusted  ERMEEZERITDAZ
EBITDA NEER 332,003 66,042 398,045 398,045
Bank interest income RITF SIMA 52,680
Interest income from debt instruments ~ BBEMEEREHEAAEE
at FVTOCI ZEBTEZFISHA 30,282
Loss on disposal of debt instruments at ~ HEBBEHMEENGFTEAR
FVTOC! BE/BRIAZER (854)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BBRRREZNE
equipment (103,205)
Release of prepaid lease payments BRBARETE (15,983)
Exchange loss at corporate level TEEENEREE (10,920)
Fair value changes of investment RENZARBEZE
properties 17,600
Finance costs HBER (171)
Profit before taxation BRAR AR R 367,474

Other than the segment information disclosed above, there
was no other information reviewed by the CODM for the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

bR ESOREE 2 B E KN IREIE2020
F3H31H KR2019%F3B31HIEFER
BEEMERHEEEERRAER -

Segment assets and liabilities NEEERGE
No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating FR A 7 £ [0 £ 1 BRIR A48 R Pl 2 3R
and reportable segments is disclosed as it is not regularly DEBEERBEITTTEIELE REA

provided to the CODM for review. B Mg ER RO o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREMTEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

6. Segment Information (continued)

Geographical information
The Group’s revenue was derived principally in Macau.

The non-current assets, other than a land and building
included in right-of-use assets of HK$2,547,000 (2019: Nil)
and debt instruments at FVTOCI, are all located in Macau.

Information about major customer

During the year, revenue derived from one (2019: one) customer
which contributed over 10% of the Group’s total revenue
amounted to HK$928,218,000 (2019: HK$1,139,510,000). The
revenue related to the gaming operation and the hotel operation.

7. Other Loss

Exchange loss

6. DEENE

h & F
AEEZ WA ZERE R

FIEERBEE GtAEREEEESEA
2,547,000/ 75 2 T M K 18 F (20194 :
#) U REBEMEERETEAREE
ZEFE T ABRIN) FIALHIERPT o

BREEERZEMN

B B 2R B 1 7S R AR IR A10%
EZ—R (0195 1 —8) BEMNIKAE
928,218,000/ 7T (20194 : 1,139,510,000
BIT) A B A R B AR o

7. HihESHR

8. Finance Costs

Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE
Bank charges RITFEE

8. MIEEHR

171

171
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

9. Profit Before Taxation 9. R&#RAIEF

Profit before taxation has been arrived  FIRBTLEF BI04 -
at after charging:

Staff costs, including directors’ BTA SREEMNE
emoluments 443,505 445,694
Retirement benefit schemes RRETFT RN
contributions (net of forfeited (NBFEZE2020F &
contributions of HK$335,000 and 2019E3H31HIEEE
HK$606,000 for the years ended B2 I fit7r335,0008 7T
31 March 2020 and 2019 respectively)  %606,00077T) 6,290 5,994
Total staff costs HE TR 449,795 451,688
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN 3,332 3,780
Commission expenses in gaming BEEEZBEER
operation (included in selling and (Gt AHE iR
marketing expenses) EBRW) 160,783 227,748
Cost of inventories recognised as an R AR 2 FEMAK
expense 33,783 39,513
Depreciation of property, plant and Mz BB R B 2 ITE
equipment 98,543 103,205
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZITE 19,486 -
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, & /S5 « e R
plant and equipment REZE1E 81 184
Loss on disposal of debt instruments HEZBEMEEWER
at FVTOCI EARBEZER
THRZEE 854
Release of prepaid lease payments FEPRTENEENIA 15,983
and after crediting: KRBEStA -
Gross rental income from investment KEWE B W ALERE
properties 22,002
Less: Direct operating expenses B - DABRERFR A BIHE
incurred for investment BYEFTEENE
properties that generated BREER
rental income (601)
21,401
Bank interest income RITHRISUA
(included in other income) (G AEZ MU AR) 52,680
Interest income from debt instruments  B@HEHMEEWGE
at FVTOCI (included in other income)  AREEZEHFIEY
FIEWA GTAEAMITAR) 30,282

114 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 2R 4B EHBRAF
Annual Report 2019/2020 £k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREMTEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

10.Directors’, Chief Executives’ and
Employees’ Emoluments
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’

emoluments

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules
and CO, is as follows:

1m§ﬁ~13ﬁﬁkﬁ&ﬁﬁ
(a)EEREETHASEH

EERTBTRABRAFEZ #
PR E A £ R A R BRI
BT

2020 2020%
Fees ik
Other emoluments Eftife
Salaries and other benefits EEREMER
Retiement benefit schemes  RIRERIETEIMR
contributions
Performance related incentive  SEEH RS
payment (Note) (H)
2019 20198
Fees e - 250 220 220 220 1,160
Other emoluments Bt
Salaries and other benefits ESREMER - - - 5 - -
Retirement benefit schemes ~ BIRERIETEIER
contributions - = - - - =
Performance related incentive ~ SFEEHNES
payment (Note) (Wizt) - - - - £ -
- 250 220 220 220 1,160

Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined
with reference to the financial performance and individual
performance.

The chief executives of the Company are also the
Executive Directors and the emoluments disclosed
above include those services rendered by them as
chief executives.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

10.Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 10.E5 - FETHAERES
Employees’ Emoluments (continued) BN (=
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) TS FrEN
The five highest paid individuals did not include any PREFEEN AExkemmMz A
director of the Company for both years. The total TARBRERATERNESF ZLHE
emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for both BEHMA T MEEE 2 HNE
years were as follows: REWE -

116

Salaries and other benefits e REMEH
Performance related bonuses BARIRHMIMITEAL 3,957
Retirement benefit schemes ROREFIETE RN
contributions 610
17,475

Emoluments of the employees were  _tiifEE > /T
within the following bands: UTEE -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001ETE
2,500,000/87T 1
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 #E7TE
3,500,000/87T 1
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 3,500,00187TE
4,000,00087t 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,00187cE
4,500,000787T 2
No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors PREEER NEEHENEERRES
and the five highest paid employees as an inducement BEE#HES TR LUEAIRS
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation WEMARRIMASEE RS > 4
for loss of office for both years. None of the directors BoEE - NmEEER EEERR
and the five highest paid individuals has waived any BN EE (AR o

emoluments during both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

10.Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 10.EF - FETHAEBRES

Employees’ Emoluments (continued) S (=
(c) Retirement benefit schemes (c) IBIRfEFIEHE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the plans are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of the independent trustees. The
Group and each employee make mandatory contributions
of 5% of relevant payroll costs with maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,500 to the scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme for all qualifying employees of a subsidiary of the
Group in Macau since 1 September 2014. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under control of independent trustees. The
retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss
represents contributions payable to funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there
are employees of the Group who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the Macau government. The
Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
its payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

During the year, the retirement benefit schemes
contributions were HK$6,290,000 (2019: HK$5,994,000),
net of forfeited contributions of HK$335,000 (2019:
HK$606,000).
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LR EMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

11.Taxation Credit

11.7R 18 [0] 2

Macau Complementary Tax BPIPTSRRR
- current year - REE (40,545)
— overprovision in prior years - B FEBEREE 33
— reversal of tax provision in - BRIATFFEZRIE
prior years Ly ] 111,605
71,093
Hong Kong Profits Tax EHENER
- current year - REE (58)
— overprovision in prior years - BEFEBREEE 30
(28)
Deferred taxation (note 26) IEIERRIA (f15E26) (242)
Taxation credit Gl 70,823

The CT is calculated at the applicable rate of 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Pursuant to the CT law, the statutory right to issue CT
assessment on the estimated assessable profit in a year of
assessment will expire in five consecutive years after that
year of assessment. At the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company reassessed the adequacy of the
CT provision and determined to reverse part of the Group’s
relevant CT provision of HK$91,769,000 for the 2014 year of
assessment (2019: HK$111,605,000 for the 2013 year of
assessment) accordingly.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profit for the current year. Hong Kong Profits
Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for the prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREMTEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

11.Taxation Credit (continued)
The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

11.

BIa [ (&)
AEERELRARESESREME
ER R FIRATEFSERN T

Profit before taxation BRI A=A 206,707 367,474
Taxation charge at the CT rate of 12% IR RIRINE12%stE
RIEZ H (24,805) (44,097)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FLIRFETME DR
for tax purpose ZIRBRE (7,691) (13,701)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FIRFET = B BERIRUIA
purpose 2B E 15,254 15,185
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RMEIIRIBEIB Z RF
E (77) -
Effect of reversal of tax provision in BOlEFFERBEEE
respect of prior years e 91,769 111,605
Overprovision in respect of prior years iB{f 4 EiBEEEE 20 63
Utilisation of tax losses previously not EhBScHI kR RIE
recognised E518 1,108 1,779
Others Hth 160 (1)
Taxation credit for the year R ERIEO]# 70,823

12.Dividends

FRESRIEDIKZ
RS :

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

Final dividend paid in respect of

2019: HK$0,054 per share (2019:

HK$0.057 per share in respect of

$20.0547E 7T

BIK2019F KRS :

12.

(20194F : F£2018FE 2 RHA

2018) i 8 280£0.057%87T)
Interim dividend paid in respect of EIK2020FFEAR B :
2020: HK$0.030 per share (2019: &5%0.03078 7T

HK$0.028 per share in respect of
2019)

(20194F : H£20194F ~ A
B A8580.028787T)

73,631
37,049 35,871
104,267 109,502

The board of directors proposed the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.030 per share (2019: HK$0.054 per share)
for the year ended 31 March 2020 which is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
el RRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

13. 51 &H

13.Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings &

Earnings (profit for the year attributable  FEREAEFN M= 2
to owners of the Company) for the B (X QBB A
purpose of basic earnings per share FEALFEmA])

KTABEAANEBEERELENTIRE
LU SRR

367,492

Number of shares v 4=

Weighted average number of ordinary MEREABIMEZ
shares in issue for the purpose of BETEER
basic earnings per share 980

1,285,495,778

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there was no
dilutive potential ordinary share for both years.

14.Investment Properties

The Group leases out various commercial properties under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 8 years (2019: 2 to
5.5 years), with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond
initial period held by one of lessees only. Majority of the
lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event
the lessee exercises the option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a
result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies of the
relevant group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

AR B I M AE F E S 388
FEER S EZ7SREEET

4.1 EME

AEBRBLKEHELHALEREY
¥ AL BX M -HE—RT A2
84 (20194 : 2E5.5%4 ) M HAP—
ZABAFENESEmEN T EEEH
IERZEFIARABRLAIN o e AFE AT TELERA
> KEBHHEEENEHBTHBERENR

HRFTAEEEEMEREREEREBZ
ThEEEEHE A SR ERBE 25
MAZINE R - HE S EE S RIER
BERSERHAEBARBERLEE
Y ESiNE e

Fair value AREE

At 1 April 2018 201845 1H 679,300
Increase in fair value NAEEE 17,600
At 31 March 2019 7220193831 H 696,900
Decrease in fair value NREERED (36,400)
At 31 March 2020 112020438 31H 660,500

The investment properties represent completed investment
properties situated in Macau.
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14. 5 EWE (&)

14.Investment Properties (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on those dates by
Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, an independent firm of
qualified professional property valuers not connected to the
Group, in accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards
2017 issued by The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, all investment
properties were held for rental under operating leases. The
investment properties are held within a business model of
the Group whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. There has
been no change to the valuation technique during the year.
The valuation was arrived at with reference to market
evidence of recent transaction prices for similar properties
with adjustments to reflect different locations and
conditions.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique and inputs used), as well
as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement

AREEZREYEF2020FE3831H &
2019FE3A31HZ AR BELRE =
HR ST ARAT ) (HAEE I ER
BB S EREEYEGEMT) RZ
SHHRE B EMETEHG 2 FHEE
B2 EERER (2017F/R) EITHE
MAETE °

1202038 31H &201943H318 » Fir
BEREYMEIIRBESHEFAIFHE
IR - ZEREYETH BBREMmIFER
HESI  HERBEYEFTIEAIL
BN AR AERBERLE
B RNMESHEZ ANBER  ZFWE
ZEEMEERRAEFEERR ~FE
RERAMT I R EE) o (h(E 5 2IRTAREAIL
W2 2 532 5 B8 PR I Bl K PR [E] it
& KRR AT METE

TREHIDMEEXZFREMENLR
BB (LHEHZPTERA B G ERM KB A
BB URRBARNEEENS
ABBENOERIEZEERANBESEE
TRENARBESR (F1RELIMR) -

Sensitivity/relationship
of unobservable inputs to

of financial position Fair value Valuation techniques
RERRGEMBRRR Fair value hierarchy and key inputs
RENRENS MEE RABESHR  (HERERBREALE
HK$'000
Tn
Commercial properties 660,500 Level 3 Direct comparison method
in Macau (2019: 696,900) EX with market unit rate as
REMNEEE (20194 : 696,900) the key input
NHBEFEARREA
YENERIEL

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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Significant fair value
unobservable inputs YEE/ FIRZEANE
EERTREHANE SRR BENRR

Market unit rate, mainly taking
into account the location,
frontage and size, between
the comparables, which
ranged from HK$6,000 to
HK$28,000 (2019: HK$6,500 to
HK$30,000) per square foot
Rt a2 Bl
B BERARERENTS
BB NIRETAR6,000
BT 28,0007 (2019 ©
6,500 730,000t

|._H,

Asignificant increase in the
market unit rate used
would resultin a
significant increase in the
fair value of the
investment properties,
and vice versa

FRRmAEEAREMRS|
NRENENLABEAR
1 R

RAEE » BIRABEBANEL
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

15.Property, Plant and Equipment

15. 9% - B REE

Cost ik

At 1 April 2018 1201854518

Additions 5

Disposalsfrite-off HE /s

At 31 March 2019 1R2019E3A317

Additions R

Disposals/write-off HE /s

At 31 March 2020 12020538317

Depreciation e

At1 Agril 2018 R2018E41A

Provided for the year ~ EERES

Eliminated on disposall & /#i$iE$E
write-off

At 31 March 2019 1201938317

Provided for the year RS

Eliminated on disposall ~ Hi& /#3843
write-off

At 31 March 2020 1R2020E3A317

Carrying amounts KEfE

At 31 March 2020 1R2020E38317

At 31 March 2019 R2019£38317

1313516 90767 363314 224458 273,136 10907 4081 2,280,179
A K14 15,807 14914 733 04y 75305
4 (593) (908) (573) (459) (2527)

1313516 06058 20047 287477 2,352,057
. 38385 16563 17,836 74,882

. . (320) (591) (3,146)
1,313,516 MA43 255800 304722 2,424,693
200785 21559 28963 177369 214,998 7622 3245 1014214
35,270 2060 3238 15,878 15,789 1,244 Q1 103208

- - (579) (901) (390) (459) - (2.329)

335,055
35,270

321,385
29,79

192,346
14,294

230,397 8,413
15,200 1,340

1,115,096
98,543

. . (320) (459)  (2,235)
70325 26007 351181 206320 205138 7,518

(3,014)
1,210,625

943,191
978,461

64,670

93,262
84,673

49,370
47,101

59,584 3,532
57,080 2,174 833

1,214,068

66,939 1,237,861
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

15.Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 15.49% 2Kl (&)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Over the estimated useful lives
of 40 years or the unexpired
terms of the relevant leases,
whichever is shorter

Hotel properties and
buildings

Leasehold improvements 10 - 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10 - 20%
equipment

Machinery 10 — 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Others 20%

The hotel properties and buildings are located in Macau. As
the lease payments for land and building elements, other
than those included in note 16, cannot be allocated reliably,
the entire lease is included in the carrying amount of the
buildings.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group assessed the hotel property
of Inn Hotel Macau with a carrying amount of HK$261,457,000
for impairment by considering its recoverable amount, having
regard to the change in market conditions in Macau after the
outbreak of COVID-19. The recoverable amount of the Inn
Hotel Properties is estimated based on the fair value less
costs of disposal of the Inn Hotel Properties, which is
estimated based on valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and assumptions of market conditions,
and based on the valuation conducted by an independent firm
of qualified professional valuers and approved by the
directors of the Company. The valuation was arrived at by
using income capitalisation method. No impairment loss was
recognised on the Inn Hotel Properties for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Key assumptions and unobservable inputs adopted by the
management to estimate the recoverable amount of the Inn
Hotel Properties are as follows:

e the estimated operating income applied in the income
capitalisation method; and

e capitalisation rate of 4.35% is adopted based on the
analysis performed by an independent firm of qualified
professional valuers, which reflects current market
assessments with regards to the change in market

FitZE B R EHERE UERESE

U TFEXRFLURE .
BIEMER fhET Rl FHR40F
18 SEREE Y
FIEmEH
(BRI E A %)
HEY =R E 10 — 20%
R EER 10 — 20%
R
1% 28 10 — 20%
RE 20%
Hih 20%

i@E%%E’z%%EﬁE@DF‘? FRS R
BFE D 2 BEMRE (M 16FTIREE
9|‘)Tﬁb_fﬁziﬁ’, DEC > WEBIEEE ST AR
FZIREE

1202038318 » & & B20197 X W
SRR BPIHRES)  AEE LA
Yol 28T BR E {8 4 261,457,000 7T
ZRPIRR RIS 2 BIE Y 2 RE o Bk it
EIEY)E 2 AU [Cl 28T IR 5 B A S
M2 AABERHE A LR
#ﬁﬁ%ﬁTTﬁﬁ%kﬁ#&%%E
2R AERN UKIREA AT ES
o KRB A BESE X MEMITET
2 EGE o HEDFERWABAREIAST
B o RE E2020F3831H LEEE > Wi
PR AV ERDRERE -

BIEE R UGSt R EEEYE I W E &
BEPTHRMZ TR BRI TREHAH
B

o WABRLEPERZAsHEE
NEI;4

o RMEXRERABRHREBEILS
ERFXEGEMTETZOM &
DT RR2019ER BB HRIEH R Z
MR Es) 2 B R I5eTE R

conditions after the outbreak of COVID-19 and the risks B AT A R o
specific to the Inn Hotel Properties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

16.Right-of-use Assets

Cost s

At 1 April 2019 (note 2)  F20195FE431H (MfzE2)
Additions TR

At 31 March 2020 122020538 31H
Depreciation e

Provided for the year and FER&F2020E35 31
at 31 March 2020 Hz 5

Carrying values IREE
At 31 March 2020 12020538 31H

Expense relating to short-term leases and
other leases with lease terms end within

of HKFRS 16

493,515

493,515

475,964

BRI AR ERARYRERE S
RIS 4RI 551657 H #AEET 128
12 months from the date of initial application AREmzEMEBE X

16.[FRHEEE

495,059
= 3,820

498,879

17,551 19,486

479,393

Total cash outflow for leases

HEZIRERHEEE

For both years, the Group leases certain leasehold lands,
office, warehouse and carpark for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term from 1 to 25 years.
Certain leases of leasehold lands in Macau are negotiated
for an initial term of 25 years with extension options
exercisable by the Group.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns certain hotel and commercial
properties classified as property, plant and equipment and
investment properties respectively. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
not presented separately as the payments made cannot be
allocated reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

16.Right-of-use Assets (continued) 16.fFFREEE (&)
As at 31 March 2020, the Group assessed the leasehold land R202053831H » £ & {20197 #k /&
of Inn Hotel Macau with a carrying amount of HK$268,574,000 FRBERZRFMLESEE  KEELL
for impairment by considering its recoverable amount, having BI U (el ZR T BRI {8 4 268,574,0007%
regard to the change in market conditions in Macau after the TOZRPIRRIE Z HE T RiE o
outbreak of COVID-19. The details of the determination of the EEREBEN WL EEEZF BRI
recoverable amount of the relevant assets are disclosed in I EE o NEE2020F3H831HIEFE > I
note 15. No impairment loss was recognised on the leasehold mPURPIREE 2 HE R E
land of Inn Hotel Macau for the year ended 31 March 2020. E5i8 o
17.Prepaid Lease Payments 17. R (IR EMRIE
2019
HK$'000
T8t
Carrying value IREE
At beginning of the reporting period R EHREAY]) 480,603
Addition TR 2,773
Released for the year FRE R (15,983)
At end of the reporting period REHRAER 467,393
Analysed for reporting purposes as follows: FLERME 2 DMTUWT :
Non-current FETED 451,413
Current TmED 15,980
467,393
The Group’s prepaid lease payments represented leasehold RNEBZBENBERIBIEMNRE 2
lands in Macau. Biho
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

18.Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through  18.EBEMEZEKBFHAELALR
Other Comprehensive Income EBEZEHIA

Debt instruments at FVTOCI FEHMPERESTEANEE
comprise debt instruments: ZEBITREBEAMEHFIA:
— listed in Singapore/Hong Kong - P EB L

with fixed interests at the BIEFHENF4.375E2F
rates ranging from 4.375% 6.750E KR EIHRENF

to 6.750% per annum and 201948 1HE

maturity dates falling 2020F3H31H

between 1 April 2019

to 31 March 2020 96,783
— listed in Singapore - PRI £
(2019: Singapore/ (20194 : IR &H)
Hong Kong) with fixed B FHZNF6.700EE
interests at the rates 6.875/E (20194F : 4.250EF
ranging from 5.700% to 6.875% 8.375E) REIBENF
(2019: 4.250% to 8.375%) 2020F4H1HE
per annum and maturity 2021F3831H
dates falling between
1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021 286,584
- listed in Cayman Island/Hong - RESHE BB LH
Kong (2019: Singapore/ (2019 : #hR&#)
Hong Kong) with fixed BIE =N F4.875/EF
interests at the rates 6.000/E (20194F : 4.875EF
ranging from 4.875 to 6.000% 6.950[E) &REEAR N F
(2019: 4.875% to 6.950%) 2021F4B1HE
per annum and maturity 202243831H
dates falling between
1 April 2021 to
31 March 2022 85,441
468,808
Analysed for reporting purposes as  FLE2WMs 2T :
follows:
Non-current JERED 372,025
Current TEN 96,783
468,808
The amounts are carried at fair values which are the quoted BRESBENIENERBER 2 ANEE (B
bid prices in active markets at the end of the reporting SERTHIEHRE) 518 o
period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

18. ZBHMEEmREAEQR

18.Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through

Other Comprehensive Income (continued)
Included in debt instruments at FVTOCI are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entity:

United States Dollar (“USD”)
Renminbi (“RMB”)

oM7)
ARE(TAR®)

BEZEHIA(E)
BB H A2 E R i 3t R A S EE 2 55
TEEEFIREMEERBY NS
M UGN BT BHE R R 38 ¢

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TR
397,657

71,151

19.Goodwill

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounting to HK$110,960,000 (2019: HK$110,960,000) had
been allocated to the cash-generating unit relating to the
Group’s gaming operation.

During the year, the Group performed an impairment
assessment for goodwill relating to the Group’s gaming
operation based on value in use calculation, which is
estimated by a cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budget for the next five years. Cash flows
beyond the five years are extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3.00% (2019: 3.00%). The key assumptions
for the value in use calculation including the discount rates,
growth rates and expected changes to revenue and direct
costs during the forecast period. The forecast is discounted
using a discount rate of 20.00% (2019: 18.00%). The
discount rate was determined with reference to weighted
average cost of capital of similar companies in the industry
and adjusted for specific risks associated with the Group’s
gaming operation. The growth rates do not exceed the
long-term average industry growth forecasts. Expected
changes to revenue and direct costs are based on past
practices and the management’s expectations of future
changes in the market. As the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is higher than the carrying amount of
the cash-generating unit, the directors of the Company
consider no impairment loss need to be recognised for both
years.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 2R 4EEB R AT

EE

FR20205F3H31H » e~ AREE 4110960000
BT (20194 © 110,960,0005E7T) » B9 HD
FHAEEBELRSERERZIRSESE
EXh

RAEE  AEBRKERAEEFTEMNE
FAERBERS XL 2 mEETRE
o MEABENDIRERIZ RKRAESE
PHEEEREZIReERERA Gt R
FrZ2HEESAENFERARTEEX
3.00% (20194F : 3.00%) & o ALEtE
FREBZIERKNHBEEARBZ
MIRE B REERTBTWARBEZRAZ
& 1bo & T8 A $#20.00% (20194 :
18.00%) ZITBEFLUITIR - e XL 2
BRERRBEAB ZMEFHEARL AR
ErTLiZHAAEREEREX£FE/M
BERMETREE B REEABIBRIT
YER ZIBRTEA o AT A R BEIZR A
ZEMEDREAFENREIEBH ™S
IRz EAMESH -ARIREELES
iz WOl EESNIREELEBUZIE
EHE > WAL B EED AN M ESEE I &
B RERIE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

20.Trade and Other Receivables

B IR
R : REERE

Trade receivables
Less: Impairment allowance

20.8 5 K H fth UL wR

76,340 151,156

Chips on hand =15
Other receivables and prepayments EfhfEU R R TET T

(52,741) (53,126)
23,599 98,030
69,277 122,888
63,619 24,654

156,495 245,572

As at 31 March 2020, trade receivables comprise receivables
from contracts with customers and lease receivables of
HK$22,487,000 (2019: HK$94,462,000) and HK$1,112,000
(2019: HK$3,568,000) respectively.

As at 1 April 2018, the amount of trade receivables comprised
receivables from contracts with customers and lease
receivables of HK$112,634,000 and HK$5,074,000 respectively.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of
impairment allowance) based on the date of credit granted
or the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set
out below:

0 - 30 days 0%30H
31 - 60 days 31&E60H
61 - 90 days 61290H
91 - 180 days 91&2180H
Over 180 days 180H U L

2020538 31H ' BZ W EIERE
BRENZERRARAERKZRS A
22,487,00057T (20194F : 94,462,000
78) 521,112,000/ 75 (20194 : 3,568,000
BrT)e

R2018F481H B EWFBHER B
BREAHZ R REEERTD RS
112,634,000787T55,074,000787T °

UFAAEER2RARZELEER
HASKEE R QA2 5 2 & 5 FEUGR (0FR0RL
ERHR) ZIRE DT

456
780
1,335
13,684

98,030

The Group normally allows credit periods of up to 60 days
to its trade customers, except for certain credit worthy
customers with long term relationship and stable repayment
patterns, where the credit periods are extended to a longer
period.

Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 33(b).
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21.Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-term Bank 21.BiE#RR{TER 2 HASRT

Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

As at 31 March 2020, pledged bank deposit represents a
deposit of HK$348,000 (2019: HK$340,000) pledged to a
bank to secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment provided
by a third party to the Group. As at 31 March 2019, the
balance also included a deposit of HK$43,700,000 (2020:
Nil) pledged to a bank to secure a bank facility granted to a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, details of which
has been set out in note 31(c). The pledged bank deposits
carry fixed interest rate at 2.40% (2019: fixed interest rates
ranged from 2.20% to 2.40%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2020, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity over 3 months carry interest at fixed
interest rates which ranged from 2.05% to 2.80% (2019:
2.30% to 2.70%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group,
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or
less and carry interests at prevailing market rates ranged
from 0.01% to 2.50% (2019: 0.01% to 3.05%) per annum.

Included in pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances and cash is the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

usD =TT
RMB YN

a8 RITEGRERE
11202038 31H » BIKHIR1TE IS
348,00078 7T (20194F : 340,0008 75) 2
IRITERERBET—BRT FA—2F
—HRRBEAEEGEEMEEER IR
o jA2019FE3H31H » 45 BTN B FE K I8
FIRITUREBR T AR ZENB AT
Z R 17 B4 B Z ¥ £43,700,00038 JT
(2020%F : &) ERAGEBE N
31(c)c BEIRFRITERREETEF X
2.40E (20194 | #LETEFZENF2.20
EZE2.40E)5t8

12020538311 » [R EIH3 B 2318 B LA
EZRBRTEREEEFEMNENF
2.05/E E£2.80E (2019%F : 2.30E £2.70
E)stRe

IRITHEBARECOEAEERFEZIRS
KEFEHAIEB U T RIBITHIS
FF E A F0.01/E £2.50E (20194 :
0.01EZE3.05/E) st EZIR1TFER ©

EHRIRIRTTER AR ARIRT T AU ERTT
MR RIREAE N IRERERERE
ThEEE R LUSMNYE TS SHEREEE

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TR
655,162

2,776
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

22.Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables ZEZ Y INEA

Chips in custody and deposits from 1BER D2 FHEMFR
gaming patrons

Construction payables and accruals FE TI2IE R ESHE A

Other payables and accruals HuE R e E B
Accrued staff costs FEsTE TR
Short-term advance DHREAER

22. B 5 R H & (3%

7,616 12,068

17,905 25,422

2,670 4,688
77,533 87,027
16,490 45,179
18,000 18,000

140,214 192,384

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out
below:

0 - 30 days 0ZE30H
31 - 60 days 31E60H
61 — 90 days 61E90H
91 — 180 days 91FE180H
Over 180 days 180H LA =

UTA/AERERERMARZEZHNZE
52 BRI ZARES DA

6,083
5,677
105
165
38

12,068

Other payables and accruals mainly include accrued
commission expenses in gaming operation, other accrued
expenses and other deposits.

23.Amounts Due to Fellow Subsidiaries
The amounts are due to subsidiaries of Emperor International,
which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

24. R—HM B AT 2 IFEhE

24.Amounts Due to Non-controlling

Interests of a Subsidiary

The amounts represent unsecured and interest-free shareholder’s
loans due to non-controlling interests of Luck United. In
accordance with the contractual terms of the shareholders’
agreements, the amounts are to be repaid from surplus fund,
which represents cash available in Luck United and its
subsidiaries after paying all operating expenses and
payables, including but not limited to bank loans and third
party loans which are due for repayment together with the
accrued interest.

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the management
of Luck United determined that Luck United had adequate
available surplus fund for the repayment of all principal
amounts outstanding to its non-controlling shareholders.
Accordingly, the amounts are shown as current liabilities as

jirg

ZEFIEE N Luck United Z JEIERGIERS
BEIRIR R 2 BB E N  IRIEARE R
ZENGRT ZERERURGERE
1B o BERE 2 TLFELuck United K ELHY
NENZ WA RERS RENR(EE
BAREREBEEZIRTERNRE=S
BREREFNE) B2 EARE -

2202093831 H 2019434311 » Luck
UnitedBEE 58 ALuck UnitedEA &
WO ARG ESEENEIFERKRE
ZFRTAEARE oAl ZFIEF 2020538
31H K2019FE3A31B A~ AR &

at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. Ko
25.Lease Liabilities 25. 78816
2020
HK$’000
TFHT
Lease liabilities payable: FESTEAE !
Within one year —FR
Within a period of more than one year but —F U ERBEME
not more than two years
Within a period of more than two years but ~ WMEL HBRBIBEE

not more than five years

Within a period of more than five years REME

Less: Amount due for settlement within
12 months shown under
current liabilities

B ARB AR AR 12(BR R
BEEEZ T

Amount due for settlement after 12 months
shown under non-current liabilities

SIASERBaENL AR 12ER %
BEEEZTHR

Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of HK$29,879,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of HK$28,622,000 as at 31 March
2020. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Except for the leasehold lands and
related assets recognised in Macau, other related leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

As at 31 March 2020, the amounts are secured by rental
deposits with carrying values of HK$643,000.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2 2iR4EEHG R AT

HE BRI R HI 24
12020438311 » BEEE29,879,000/87T
= 7 AR AR o P A 08,622,000
B MEREREBAREZHES
BRI I WA IR5E
FRBORPIRESR AR B L RAARIE A
5h > HLAtARRITE E A NS A EE E
3 o

JL2020F3A31H Z M E U R H &
643,000/8 T 2 HE LB 1R ©
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26.Deferred Taxation
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

26.IRIEMRIA

UTRAAFERIZTBRLEREA(E
B EERERES

At 1 April 2018 12018548 1H (24,746)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss  718% (11B8) 5t A (1,142)
At 31 March 2019 £2019%3831H (25,888)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss 7183 (305) st A (1,590)

At 31 March 2020 12020%3H31H (27,478)

Note: The Macau tax authority granted a concessionary deduction
to Grand Emperor Entertainment & Hotel (Macau) Limited
(“Grand Emperor Entertainment”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Macau, to
claim deduction of depreciation allowance for certain of its
property, plant and equipment for tax purpose in an
accelerated pattern over a period which is half of the
expected useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
and such a concession ended on 31 December 2013. Out of
the deferred tax liability of HK$27,478,000 (2019:
HK$25,888,000), an amount of HK$22,308,000 (2019:
HK$22,398,000) has been recognised in respect of the
accelerated tax depreciation of those property, plant and
equipment related to the concession.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset for the temporary differences arising from the
same group entity.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$150,743,000 (2019: HK$122,469,000) available for offset
against future profits. Deferred tax asset is recognised in respect
of HK$74,350,000 (2019: HK$18,306,000) of such loss. No
deferred tax asset is recognised in respect of the remaining tax
losses of HK$76,393,000 (2019: HK$104,163,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. The Group’s
unrecognised tax losses might be carried forward
indefinitely, except for an amount of HK$15,775,000 (2019:
HK$43,849,000) which will expire in 3 years from the year of

assessment.
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(86,560) 294 (111,012)
(1,003) 1,903 (242)

(87,563) (111,254)
5,476 10,611

(82,087) (100,643)

KifaE © RPIMEIFIm AR BRI MAL
U2 EEERENB AT R EIRLEE
ECEF) BERAT (T EWREEHEE
B DET-EEEMRE BEE
TYE- MBS REHE BN IERE
HER > UMt ERIEmM S 2%
E HBREREZITERRE B
BEER2013F12831H K L i
EERIEE(E27,478,0008 7T (2019
£:25,888,000/87T) F B RtEESR
BREAZYE SRR EZ INERRIE
HEERESR 22,308,000 7T (20194F
22,398,000787T) °

MEIREMBRRERMES @ ELERIEE
EhBELE—SBERMELE Bk
ZEAE RSN o

FA20205E3 831 H » B A R ENRMRIEE
$8150,743,00077T (20194F | 122,469,0007E
7o) Al PR R ZEm A e sz A5 1E
74,350,0007% 7T (20194F : 18,306,000/ 7T,)
B AIRERIEE E c B AR LR
ZRBIFERIME > 57T 2 MIER5 876,393,000
77T (20194 £ 104,163,000787T) M EFESD2
EIEFRIEE E o AN B 2 SR FEsRin kS 18 n]
ERARAEER M BT EEEESFEANEIRA
FRIE15,775,00077T (20194F : 43,849,00078
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

27.Share Capital 27. 187

Number of shares

Share capital

KR8 E ;&
HK$’000
F#ET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each SRMEE0.0001 T2
ZiEk
Authorised: VERE
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 R20185E4818
and 31 March 2020 2019%3H31H &
20203H31H 2,000,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BT !
At 1 April 2018 2018548 1H 1,302,545,983 130
Share repurchased and cancelled FERNEBLK&EFH
during the year (Note) 2 B&1n (Kitat) (43,720,000) (4)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3831H 1,258,825,983
Share repurchased and cancelled FERNEEO KFH
during the year (Note) 2 B&1n (FizE) (24,585,000)

At 31 March 2020

12020438 31H

1,234,240,983

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company MisE -

repurchased its own shares from the market in total of
24,585,000 (2019: 43,720,000) shares at an aggregate
consideration of HK$38,638,000 (2019: HK$72,611,000)
(including the relevant transaction costs and expenses of
HK$125,000 (2019: HK$234,000)). The average price of the
repurchased shares was HK$1.567 (2019: HK$1.655) per
share. These repurchased shares had been cancelled at the
end of the reporting period.

B E2020E3831H IEEE ) A A
R B 5 iRD4E 524,585, ooo
BERE1A (20194F 1 43,720,000 515) »
48 X 18 £ 38,638,000 7T (20194F
72,611,000 70) (B 3EMHERAZ 5 B A&
KfA32125,0007%8 7T (20194 : 234,000
5%%))085%@591%5’9%@%%@%
1.56778 70 (20194 : 1.65587T) ° %
LERLERMINE %EH)%;EE%&%@O

28. BERG REST R
KATIR2013FE8A15H M —I5EE S
HESTE (TEERRAERTEN ) o

28.Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 15 August 2013.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

FERR T8I 2 E 2RI T ¢

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme (a) BBRRHEEIZBW
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate FEAEEBERS BB E A
talented participants to strive for future developments B 2EEDGERANER R
and expansion of the Group. B R AR o

(b) Eligibility (b) BEt&
Eligible participants include employees (whether full BER2HECRERES (BER2BX
time or part time employee, including non-executive RHES BEFITES) K&EF
director) and such other eligible participants. HMEEKS2HE -
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28.Share Option Scheme (continued)

(¢) (i) Total number of shares available for issue under the

Share Option Scheme as at 23 June 2020 (i.e. the
date of this report): 129,254,598 shares.
(ii) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at 23 June 2020: 10.47%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible

participant under the Share Option

Scheme
(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month
period unless approved by the shareholders; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding the
higher of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders.

(e) Period within which the shares must be

()

(9) (i)

134

taken up under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the board of directors but in any
event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must

be held before it can be exercised
No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors.

Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(ii) The period within which payments or calls must or
may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.
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(c)

1R 45 B8 A% #E 51 81 52202046 8
23H (BiA#R &= HHR) o] F 88417
Z RSP 4EEIE 1 129,254, 50805 o

(i) 202068230 HH B & 1T
RPZEDEE 1 10.47% ©

(d) BBERRESTEIIE TSR GEN

(e)

()

(9) O

SREFERED R

() BRIFERE#E  SRIEEMA
12B AR SEBEEET
BRIDZ1% 5 &

iy MEA—FZzRBEETEREILY
BUFRNTEFTIFEREZ
BMBARHZERE 86
BETRINZ0.1% & BEBB
5,000,00078 70 /BL& IR BRHL/HE ©

1TIERBR ST B AR (D Z HAMR

RECEREAREEESETEE
ZER BN E R HRME
AER T NMEBER L B LS
104F ©

BRETENCEREZER
FEHAPR
BRIFEEYBTET THLER
FEHAIR o

FREE o AN BB IR HE RS FT B T
BARE © 1.00E7T ;
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HAMR . &= HHAESt28AM; &
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

28.Share Option Scheme (continued) 28. R HEET R (42)

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the Board and will
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of
the shares on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share.

(i) The remaining life of the Share Option

Scheme

Approximately 3 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme.

(h) BEETEEZEE
TEENEEEGET ETEE
RIFIBSE : () B ERREG
ZUTTH1E ; (D) BBt B A
B2 ARG 2 FHRHE 5 Rc)
BAFEME

(i) BBRGREETE| ZER T HAR
34 (722023 F8H14HEIHA) -

BRSSP B AAEE - BRI
B

29.Legal Reserve 29 EHE
As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the EPIAF BT & 2 AR A R R AR 5T
Macau Special Administrative Region, certain subsidiaries BH > R RB 2 ETHBA B BRI FE @A)
of the Company are required to set aside 25% of their profit Z25%EANEERE  BEEEACREESR
for the year to a legal reserve until the legal reserve has HEMBEARZ50%A1E c A% EMEA
reached 50% of their registered capital. No appropriation BZAERECEEESBEMELR
was made in both years as the legal reserve of those 50% >t M1EF E A ERIEE DK
subsidiaries have already reached 50% of their respective
registered capital.

30.Non-controlling Interests 30.JFiEitE s

Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2020
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests of
HK$56,005,000 (2019: HK$56,005,000) on certain interest-
free loans from the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
which were contributed in proportion to their shareholdings.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 2R 4EEB R AT

1120203831 H » JEERER BIE1R1F
2 IEEERG fE B R0 IE56,005,00058 7T
(20194 : 56,005,000/87T) e BRAHETL
A—REM B AT IEE IR R IR H AR
BIFFREz ETREER -
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31.Pledge of Assets

(a)

As at 31 March 2020, certain assets of the Group were
pledged to banks to secure for banking facilities
granted by the banks to the Group. The carrying values
of these assets at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Hotel properties BIEZE
Investment properties KEMZE
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Prepaid lease payments AR ERIE
Others (Note) HAth (ft3%)

31.EEIKH

(a)

Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other
assets of the Group including principally property, plant
and equipment (other than hotel properties), inventories,
trade and other receivables and bank balances.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a bank deposit of
HK$348,000 (2019: HK$340,000) pledged to a bank to
secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment provided by
a third party to the Group.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group also had a bank deposit of
HK$43,700,000 (2020: Nil) pledged to a bank to secure a
bank facility granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The bank facility represented a bank guarantee
amounting to Macau Pataca (“MOP”) 45,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$43,689,000 for the period from 4 June 2018 to 31
March 2020, which is made in favour of Sociedade de
Jogos de Macau, S.A. ("SJM”) for the Group’s fulfilment of
all its obligations, in particular for reimbursement by the
Group to SIM of the salaries and benefits for SUIM gaming
operation employees who work in the casino where the
Group provides services to SJM, as stipulated in a service
agreement entered into between SJM and the Group). The
pledge of this bank deposit was released as at 31 March
2020 upon expiry of the security.
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(b)

20203831 1H  "ERETEE
BIREFTIRIT EARTR FRE
B2 IR1TRIE 2 HE1H o IR 2 3REAR

ZEEERREENT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THIT
943,191 978,461
660,500 696,900
475,964 =
- 467,393
48,722 69,376
2,128,377 2,212,130

P HMEEMAERE THMEE (X2

ABEDELIINYE - HBRR
B FE E5REMBUHRKIRT
MEER) T ENIRR o

202038310 & & B K #F
348,000/ 7T (20194F : 340,000787T,)
BTERT—RBRT EA 28
—HRRBAEETEMEEER Y
o

2019438310 » & £ & 75 i ##
43,700,000 7z (20204 : ) $R1T
ERT—RERT FARAE—MH
TENBARERIETHEZR
1o 5% 38 7 B & $545,000,00038 F9
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7o) IR1THER > BAPR A220185%654H
ZF2020F3831H » LUBPIBEARD
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32.Capital Risk Management N.BEXABEIE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amounts due to non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary and lease liabilities as disclosed in notes 24
and 25, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

AEEEEHEAUBRRAERARNZE
A EIRECEREELE  ARKE
BECEBREAGHBEEMKRRZ
Ol AREEZ BRRWEXFHER T

#ho

KEE T BEARBEIEER PR (BEH
5E24 25 B 2 R—EM B AT Z JFHE
REGRARBEESR) - RERRESF
BY 2B A ATER ANELED (8
EEEITRA R a REMERE)

IR BEETE IR RIS o (E R
SNZ—H0  BEREBELRNANIES
A2 ARER - IRIBEF R NEBK
BB E TR R RN BRI
BITMERNBEORARG THHEEREE
RIRHE o

33.Financial Instruments 33.&FMITH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) R TR ZEER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET TFHET
Financial assets EMEE
Amortised cost: A
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E RGN 147,279 235,638
Pledged bank deposits BEIRFIRITER 348 44,040
Short-term bank deposits F2RARITER 980,656 300,662
Bank balances and cash IRITHERRIRE 2,563,308 2,638,143
3,691,591 3,218,483
Debt instruments at FVTOCI: HEHMEERE
ArEAREEZ
EHIA
Listed debt securities L TEE 82,374 468,808
3,773,965 3,687,291
Financial liabilities THaE
Amortised cost: HEHRAS
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAME R 98,376 110,387
Amounts due to fellow RERMMBRABIE
subsidiaries 7,377 3,930
Amounts due to non-controlling  X—EMBATZ
interests of a subsidiary JEERR R TIE 39,000 46,200
144,753 160,517
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33.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

138

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in
above table. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in
foreign currency exchange rate will affect the Group’s
financial results and its cash flows. Several subsidiaries
of the Company have foreign currency sales and
purchases, but the management considers the amount
of foreign currency sales and purchases is insignificant.
The management considers the Group does not expose
to significant foreign currency risk in relation to
transactions denominated in MOP and USD. Exposures
on balances which are denominated in MOP and USD in
group entities with HK$ as functional currency are not
considered significant as MOP is pegged to HK$ which
is also effecting pegged to USD under the pegged
exchange system in Hong Kong.

The Group has certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB (being currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities)
amounting to HK$47,748,000 (2019: HK$2,776,000). As at
31 March 2019, the Group also had certain debt
instruments at FVTOCI which are denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$71,151,000 (2020: Nil). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &{ZE2020%F3531H IEFZE

33.&£ZFITAH (/:E

33.Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BAFE RS 5 REER
and policies (continued) (%
Market risk (continued) g Rz (&)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SN R i (42

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5% (2019: 5%) in
exchange rate of RMB against HK$, while all other
variables are held constant. 5% (2019: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to the key management personnel and
represents the management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2019: 5%) change in foreign currency rate. For a 5%
(2019: 5%) strengthening in RMB against HKS$, the
Group’s profit for the year would be increased by
HK$2,387,000 (2019: HK$3,696,000). If RMB had been
weakened against HK$ in an opposite magnitude and all
other variables were held constant, the potential effect on
the results would be equal and opposite.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and bank deposits included in bank
balances, debt instruments at FVTOCI and lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate bank
balances. The Group currently does not have policy on
cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will

TXAREERARK I BER
HIR5% (20194 1 5%) E’ﬂﬁtAﬁ“
B MATEEMES#IEIAE
BREERBE © 5% (20194 : 5%mm
EEIE A BRI EHMINE R PR BF
ﬁﬁﬁz&ﬁﬂ}*tt%ﬁtﬁ%‘%%fi

aﬁﬁﬁ W%@}ELM# sHEZ
AITNEIER TR 2HRAAERU
GNIE FE SR B4 EH5% (20194F 1 5%) 1EE
RHEE - HMEARKEREBTHD%
(2019%F : 5%) REBAEEN G
F & 18 N2,387,00078 7T (20194
3,696,000/87T) c & A R BTk
BREEEREEMRBEEMESRFAFR
g BEEEERRERERZE
Eﬁ/s

AABEED S ERELART
BE R B A 2 FE B L AUBRLEE 5
L AR R B SN SRR o

Ve
AEBBEEMZNEIRPIRITE
O FERRRITERURIRTTER (BT A
fEﬁ MEER) N BB EMEE IR E FT
EANBEZEEIAKEES®E
ﬁﬁ’&ﬁtﬁﬁﬂJIﬂKﬂ”ﬁK%@ﬁ
EBNEBTEGEEIRERE
FER PR AEBIRETEIRESMN
SH PR R R G 2 BER o FAT  BIE
EERENEREBENEERERE

consider hedging significant interest rate risk should HHBEAFERRE
the need arise.
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33.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s sensitivity to fair value interest rate risk has
been determined based on the exposure to interest rate
for those fixed-rate debt instruments at FVTOCI at the
end of each reporting period. For the year ended 31
March 2020, if interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2019: 100 basis points) lower or higher and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s investments
revaluation reserve would increase or decrease by
HK$509,000 (2019: HK$6,170,000), as a result of the
changes in the fair value of fixed-rate debt instruments
at FVTOCI.

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk
has been determined based on the exposure to interest
rate for those variable-rate bank balances at the end of
the reporting period and management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in the interest rate
assuming that it took place at the beginning of each
year and was held constant throughout the respective
year.

If interest rate for the variable-rate bank balances had
been 10 basis points (2019: 10 basis points) higher
and all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on profit for the year is as follows:

Increase in profit for the year FERMIZ I
— Variable-rate bank balances - FEFIEIRITAERR

If interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

33.Financial Instruments (continued) 33.&£EFMIT A&
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) HBRAMEETS REEK
and policies (continued) (#&
Market risk (continued) G ERE (78)
Other price risk H B R %

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, the management
monitors market price exposure and will consider
hedging significant market price exposure should the
need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to other price risk on debt
instruments at FVTOCI at the end of the reporting
period. If the market bid price on such listed debt
securities had been 5% (2019: 5%) higher or lower, the
potential effect on the investments revaluation reserve
would increase or decrease by HK$4,119,000 (2019:
HK$23,440,000) arising from the debt instruments at
FVTOCI.

Credit risk management and impairment assessment
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties at the end
of reporting period are arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|' = Ejﬁ#ﬁﬁl‘fj‘I

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIFFE

33.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

142

and policies (continued)

Credit risk management and impairment assessment
(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, lifetime ECL of
HK$385,000 for trade receivables from individual gaming
patrons is reversed upon settlement from these patrons of
which the management previously considered as credit-
impaired. During the year ended 31 March 2019, lifetime
ECL of HK$35,117,000 for trade receivables from
individual gaming patrons was recognised as the
management considered certain individual gaming
patrons were credit-impaired.

The management has also assessed all available forward
looking information, including but not limited to the
economic outlook and subsequent settlement of these
receivables. As at 31 March 2020, impairment allowance
with an aggregate balance of HK$52,741,000 (2019:
HK$53,126,000) represents individually credit-impaired
trade receivables from individual gaming patrons with an
aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$65,641,000
(2019: HK$66,026,000) as the management considered
the outstanding balances from these gaming patrons
were uncollectible.

Lifetime ECL for the remaining trade receivables with an
aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$10,699,000
(2019: HK$85,130,000) was insignificant and thus not
provided by the Group due to the low probability of
default of those debtors based on historical credit loss
experience. The management has also assessed all
available forward looking information, including but not
limited to the economic outlook of Macau and
subsequent settlement of these customers, and
concluded that the credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding trade receivables is insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &{ZE2020%F3531H IEFZE

33.&£ZFITAH (/nE
(b) BAFE R PR
(4=
1B R G EERBEFG (&)

33.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)
Credit risk management and impairment assessment

(continued)

The following table shows the movements in lifetime TREFIRIERE Z 5 £ S HEDE
ECL that has been recognised for credit-impaired trade MEREREER UETET%FEH&?’XE’J
receivables from individual gaming patrons under the TR E B 1EE

simplified approach:

B RER

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
SHATEHAGG S
518 (EERE)
HK$’000
FHT
At 1 April 2018 7201844818 18,009
Change due to financial instruments 12018F48 1 BHEEH
recognised at 1 April 2018: TR T EFTESRES .
— impairment losses recognised - MR B R 1E 3,229
New financial assets originated or purchased FERNELNESHNINESH
during the year BE 31,888
At 31 March 2019 7201943 831H
Change due to financial instruments 112019481 BHESEH
recognised at 1 April 2019: M T HAELNES) :
— impairment losses reversed - BEEERL]

At 31 March 2020 112020F3H31H

Note: As at 31 March 2019, trade receivables from individual MizE © 5R2019%3831H HNEIRE

gaming patrons with gross carrying amount of
HK$3,229,000 were recognised as the management
considered certain individual gaming patrons were
credit-impaired, of which HK$385,000 is reversed
during the year ended 31 March 2020 upon settlement
from these individual gaming patrons. As at 31 March
2019, the trade receivables with gross carrying amount
of HK$31,888,000 which were new amounts originated
during that year had been defaulted and transferred to
credit-impaired. There was no such default and transfer
for amounts originated during the year ended 31 March
2020.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z 202043531 HIFFE

33.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

144

and policies (continued)

Credit risk management and impairment assessment
(continued)

For the pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances, impairment allowance was
insignificant and thus negligible to be made since the
management considers the probability of default is
negligible as such deposits are placed in reputable
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies, and have low credit risk.

For the other receivables including chips on hand,
impairment allowance was insignificant and thus not
provided since the management considers the
probability of default is minimal after assessing the
counterparties’ financial background and creditability.

For the debt instruments at FVTOCI, the Group only
invests in debt securities with low credit risk. The
Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI are all listed bonds
that are graded in the high credit ratings among credit-
rating agencies and therefore are considered to be low
credit risk investments. During the year ended 31
March 2020, impairment allowance was insignificant
and thus not provided since the management considers
the probability of default is negligible.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of banking facilities and ensures
compliance with loan covenants, if any.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has available unutilised
banking facilities of HK$520,000,000 (2019: HK$520,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and lease
liabilities that will result in cash outflow. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

33.Financial Instruments (continued) 33.&£EFMITAH#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MR ERER S REE
and policies (continued) (#&
Liquidity risk (continued) TENE L AE ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB E K IR

2020 2020%
Trade and other payables  BZREME 98,376 98,376 98,376
Amounts due to YGEN NG
fellow subsidiaries 131 1311 131
Amounts due to non- n—ENBATZ
controlling interests of  SFEERERTUE
a subsidiary 39,000 39,000 39,000
Sub-total INGF 144,753 144,753 144,753
Lease liabilties EE ) 23 43,769 29,879

144,976 188,522 174,632

2019 2019
Trade and other payables  Z5 REMERF - 110387 - - - - 110387 110387
Amounts due fo fellow  REZNBATZIE

subsidiaries - 3930 - % - £ 3930 3930

Amounts due to non- T-EREATZ
controlling interests of  SFERERTUR

a subsidiary - 46,200 - - - - 46,200 46,200
160,517 - - - - 160,517 160,517
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

33.Financial Instruments (continued)
(c¢) Fair value measurements of financial

146

instruments

The fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of all other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period approximate their corresponding fair
values.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Financial assets Fair value

EHEE NAREE
HK$’000
TF#E7T

Debt instruments at FVTOCI 82,374

BBEMEER@EAR
BEZEHIA

(2019: 468,808)
(20194F : 468,808)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and other
Levels during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MIEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

34.Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows from financing activities.

4. MERBFMEEZARER

TRV AEEMEETHAELNARE
23 UERET RIFRSEE - RELF)
FREEMEENDIEERERENARE
TREBNRNEAERRGHEERER
POEARERSMEENRERAEN
afike-

At 1 April 2018 120184818

109,502

Dividends declared (note 12) BEIRRE (Hf5t12)
Financing net cash outflow — FAEIRE R F4E (109,502)
At 31 March 2019 $2201943831H
Initial application of MBS BHHR
HKFRS 16 (note 2) LR 551658
(Ktzt2)
At 1 April 2019 (restated) 201954810
(f=E5)
New lease entered eI
Interest accrued FEETFIE

Dividends declared (note 12)
Financing net cash outflow

At 31 March 2020

BEIRRE (ffat12) 104,267
MERS R (104,267)

F22020%3531H -

35.Capital Commitments

consolidated financial statements,
net of amounts paid, in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Contracted for but not provided in the FiY)% 4R LB HEEET
HERNGREFHRE
R (OBRE &28)

107,600 ¢ 107,600
- 109,502
(170,902)

46,200

(61,400)

27,666 27,666

27,666 73,866
3,820 3,820
1,031 1,031

= 104,267

(2,638) (114,105)

29,879 68,879

(7,200)
39,000

35. BEFKiE

3,815
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ERa B HRRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

36.0perating Lease Commitments 36. X ETHEKIE
The Group as lessee EEBEAEBEA

Operating lease rentals paid and payable FEANFERYZEE REN

for the year in respect of rented premises ZIEHRERE 2,454
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had commitments for future R2019F3831H AL HARERE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating YMEZ A EEREHEBRHE SN
leases in respect of rented premises which fell due as BRBESEAE HEBZAEAW
follows: T
Within one year 1FERN 1,980
In the second to forth year inclusive FEFAF (BEEREME
£A) 851
2,831
The leases were negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 4 BREEENKEREGE BN F1E4
years and the rentals were pre-determined and fixed. FRE MEENEABEERABRES
Ko
The Group as lessor TEBEEAHBEA

Operating lease rentals received and FENMESRZREYE
receivable for the year in respect of BWRERZ KEHE
completed investment properties itk 22,002
As at 31 March 2020, minimum lease payments receivable 202038310 [EWIEE Y R RIRE
on leases are as follows: HIEYF :

Within one year

In the second year FoF
In the third year F3E
In the fourth year FAE
In the fifth year F5F
After five years 5F1%&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531H ILFZ

36.0perating Lease Commitments (continued)

The Group as lessor (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had contracted with
tenants to receive the following future minimum lease
payments in respect of premises in the completed
investment properties in Macau, which fell due as follows:

36.

REERERIE (E
EEEEALEA (B)
720194358310 » A % 8 B BifE 5 5]
4> BIRLAPIE SRR Z R EYER BRI
R TFo2 RIS HARMZ A
e

HK$’'000

T8t

Within one year 1ER 23,816
In the second to fifth year inclusive FoEFLF (BIEEEME

£7) 35,221

59,037

Certain premises in the Group’s completed investment
properties have committed tenants for the tenancy ranging
from 2 to 8 years (2019: 2 to 5.5 years) and the rentals are
pre-determined and fixed.

As at 31 March 2020, minimum lease payments receivable
on leases from a related party are as follows:

1R

Within one year

KEBETHZREYERNEETYED
P AR FAEAN FoE8E (20194 -
2ESL5E) AL MR ALEE KA

1L20204F3831H > Rl — & RAES 218
EREAEERENT ¢

HK$’000
FET

As at 31 March 2019, operating lease rentals committed
from a related party amounted to HK$14,170,000 which fall
due as follows:

A2019FE3831H » BlE H B AERIKE
THEHEEA14,170,000/87T  EBEREX T
BRONR

HK$’000

FET

Within one year 1R 4,723
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFLF (BIEEEME

M) 9,447

14,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ERa B HRRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

37.Related Party Transactions 37.FAERFRH
(a) During the year, the Group had the following significant (a) RAFEE AEBEGHAMESET
transactions with related parties: THIEKRIS

Advertising fee to a related m—RERE AN
company BEE&

496

Brokerage fee to a related company [A—ERFEAT LT
= 485
Commission to Dr. Albert Yeung in @38+ (WUAKER
his capacity as a patron of the EEEXZFZ5173)
Group’s VIP room SIAE 949
Professional service fee to a related [E—RAEAETX T
company BERBER 420
Purchase of property, plant and AFEARRER
equipment and merchandising B AEIEEYZE
goods from related companies AR ERE R E R
and fellow subsidiaries 938
Reimbursement of administrative BNRRHBAE
expenses to fellow subsidiaries Frsz (2 172 10,564
Rental income from a related a1 —E R E A BIUER
company FEUA 4,141
Secretarial fee to a related company  [A—RIRAAT—F
controlled by a director of the EEEF 2 BEAT
Company ZAMERBFE 400
Note: Save as disclosed above, the above related companies Fffzt : bR EXFRiREE I FliRRE
and fellow subsidiaries are controlled by the relevant NEREZRKBABBEGEL
private discretionary trusts of which Dr. Albert Yeung is EABIT ANKRMERT AZIE
the founder and settlor. BIFA N 2 REEFEIER) o
(b) The key management personnel of the Company are the (b) "RABZEHMEBAEARREZ
directors of the Company. The details of the remunerations EE-MREXNEREHREESR
paid to them relating to short-term employee benefits are 2 FENEE B EMIEE10 ©

set out in note 10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

38.Financial Information of the Company 3. AT ZHMBEER
The financial information of the Company as at 31 March KA B FR2020%3H31H k20194383
2020 and 31 March 2019 is as follows: ITEZMBERNT !

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERE AR ZIRE 190,237 118,008
Amount due from a subsidiary fEW—FREM B A BFIE 405,514 388,820
595,751 506,828
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables HANFEUER 257 213
Amount due from a subsidiary fEW— RS B A BFIE 184,533 188,111
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRE 7,993 14,043
192,783 202,367
Current liabilities mENEE
Other payables HANFEIFR 1,196 1,129
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ~X—RIFEZWEBAS
B - 1,500
1,196 2,629
Net current assets MENEERE 191,587 199,738
Net assets BEEFE 787,338 706,566
Capital and reserves BARK#E
Share capital iz 123 126
Reserves (Note) 11 (fif5t) 787,215 706,440
Total equity R ABEE 787,338 706,566
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ERa B HRRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

38.Financial Information of the Company 8. L AT ZMBEN (&
(continued) o
Note: Wizt

At 1 April 2018 7?2018%F4H1H 436,765 668 434,179 871,612
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNEZ2ERGE - - 16,937 16,937
income for the year “azgE
Ordinary share repurchased and B[OI&sH 2 i@k - 4 (72,611) (72,607)
cancelled (note 27) (Htz227)
2018 final dividend paid 2018 RHARE R » - - (73,631) (73,631)
in cash LIRSS
2019 interim dividend paid 2019FHHARL B » - - (35,871) (35,871)
in cash DRSS
At 31 March 2019 R2019E3H31H 436,765 269,003
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNREEWE - 223,677
income for the year 4aza
Ordinary share repurchased and  F&[ol R sk88 > Timpg (38,638)
cancelled (note 27) (Ht5£27)
2019 final dividend paid 2019F KRR B » (67,218)
in cash LOREZ M
2020 interim dividend paid 2020FFRHARG B (37,049)
in cash LUREL T
At 31 March 2020 R 2020FE3H31H 436,765 349,775 787,215
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

39.Particulars of Subsidiaries 39.Mi B AT B
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) B ARI—mREN
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company KA B FR202053831H F220194
as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are as follows: SES1EZEEMBARFRUNT !

Acute Rise Limited British Virgin Investment holding
HEBRAF Islands/ iESH REERK
Macau
BBREUBE/
il
Affluent Travel Services Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$500,000 80  Provision of travel
Em K ERRAR B 500,000t agency services
TRETRE R RS
Asian Glory Limited Macau MOP25,000 80  Property holding
ENRBERAR il 25,0007 REE
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Macau MOP25,000 80  Provision of project
Management Limited il 25,0008 T financing
HRRAREERERAR services
RUEEMERY
Emperor Entertainment Hotel British Virgin US$50 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited Islands/ 50%7T REER
HEREREREERAR Macau
EBEUEE/
B
Grand Emperor Entertainment Macau MOP500,000 80  Provision of hotel
B2 R R B 500,000 7 and catering
services
RAEERERRS
Inn Hotel Macau Limited Macau MOP100,000 100 Provision of hotel
APBETEEERAR il 100,0002F9 7 and catering
services
RHEE R B RRE
Keen Million Limited British Virgin US§$1 80  Hotel entertainment
Islands/ S BIbiRE
Macau
HEEYHEE/
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EMIEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

39.Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries
(continued)

Luck United (Note (1)) (Bifz#()) ~ British Virgin US$10,000

Islands/ 10,000E70
Macau
HBRIHE/
Pl
Oceanic Leader Investments British Virgin US$1
Limited Islands/ ESH
Macau
HBRYHE/
]
Precision Faith Limited Macau MOP100,000
HEFERAT AP 100,002 7T

Quick Gain Investments Limited  British Virgin US$1

Islands/ 1%
Macau
HEELHES/
B
Right Achieve Limited British Virgin US$1
ERERAR Islands/ 1%
Macau
SERLES/
B
Tin Hou Limited Macau MOP25,000
REERAT AP 25,0002 7%
154 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 2R 4B EHBRAF
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100

100

80

100

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

VIP room and
provision of
gaming-related
marketing and
promotion
services

EEEZEBRIEM
EREERER
REBR%

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Provision of agency
services for
gaming operation

REBRAEEHL
B R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

39.Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries

(continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
acquired 15% of shareholdings in Luck United, in
aggregate, at a total consideration of HK$460,000,000,
which also included the acquisition of a shareholder’s loan
of HK$36,750,000 due and payable by Luck United to Big
Wheel Limited upon completion on 19 October 2018,
details of which had been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 October 2018. The difference of
HK$293,936,000 between the consideration paid for
equity interests of HK$423,250,000 and the decrease in
the non-controlling interests of HK$717,186,000 was
recognised directly in other reserve.

In addition, the Group further acquired another 5% of
shareholdings in Luck United, in aggregate, at a total
consideration of HK$155,000,000, which also included the
acquisition of the shareholder’s loan of HK$12,250,000 due
and payable by Luck United to New Mode Limited upon
completion on 25 January 2019, details of which had been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27
December 2018 and its circular dated 14 March 2019. The
difference of HK$103,022,000 between the consideration
paid for equity interests of HK$142,750,000 and the
decrease in the non-controlling interests of HK$245,772,000
was recognised directly in other reserve.

Upon completion of the above acquisitions, the Group
increased its shareholding in Luck United from 60% to
80%.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited % 2R 4EEB R AR
Annual Report 2019/2020 £ #k

39.M B AT G (&
(a) FBAR—REN (&

et -

(i)

(if)

HE2019FE3R31HIEEE » &&E
= LU 48 18 2 460,000,00078 7T UK
B Luck UnitedZ 15%B5#E > H
FIREFER2018E108 19H =L
BUBELuck United&S R R IER T
Big Wheel Limitedz iR 88 & &
36,750,000 T - BREEEE IR A&
AT B A2018F10B8H 2 A&
I EE o BT AR B423,250,00078
ToEAIEERS R TR 2 717,186,000
BT B Z=%8293,936,00078 T E
BN EMEE R

1ESh > AEE R D4R A& 43 155,000,000
BroiE— P WEELuck United 2 %8
INE% R HE > AR R B IE 20194
18325H 5E A FLuck United4E X
R FEfTFNew Mode Limited= &
BHEH12,250,0008 77 c A RIEIE
ERARQE HEA2018F12827
HZ AER2019F38 140 2B
182 o B IREEI1E142,750,00078
ToEAIEITRG e R L 2 245,772,000
BTz R %E103,022,000/8 T E
BB AR o

REMINEEEERMNE  AEBR
Luck Unitedz B& # FH60%IE &
80% °

RARBEEZRR » LRINEE
AHAEREBRNEERTEY
B ERNEINBAB] AR RBESE
RAJNLEMMB AT 2158
7)5%3 BRTE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ERa B HRRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

39.Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 39.MiB ATIHE (&)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) B AR—MRENR (&
(continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has REWRPR KRBHEEHAEE
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. All MEFAEANEMIE RS - ZE
of these subsidiaries operate in Macau. The principal WEB AR REERPIEE - ZEW
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as BABNEEEBBMRAT -
follows:

Investment holding and others Macau

KEER M ]
None of the subsidiaries of the Company issued any debt 11202053831 HK 201943831
securities as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. B XABME A BB R EITEM

BEHES ©
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) EEEKRIEERERIER

that have material non-controlling BB AR Zs#1E
interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRETEREERIFERERNA
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non- REFEZEMB AR Z515

controlling interests:

Luck United* British Virgin Islands 18,530 FORCE 1,010,251
EBRYHEE

*  Representing Luck United and its subsidiaries. * fAFLuck United &R EFBAF] ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tF e B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 E;Z20204E3531HIFFEZE

39.MIB AT H1E (&)

(b) EEEXIHEREDNIIER
BB AR Z#15 (&

39.Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling

interests (continued)
Luck United*

Luck United*

Current assets MEEE 3,597,985 3,187,848
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,847,714 2,274,596
Current liabilities Vi ZII=RE (255,495) (362,525)
Non-current liabilities EREFEE (138,953) (140,606)
Equity attributable to owners KATHER NEEER
of the Company 4,041,000 3,967,450
Non-controlling interests IR R 1,010,251 991,863
Revenue WA 815,396 887,322
Expenses, other gains and losses B ~ Hfthie5 R E518 (722,746) (646,283)
Profit for the year FE A 92,650 241,039
Other comprehensive (expense) FEHEMEE X)W
income for the year (712) 1,183
Total comprehensive income FELHEWHLRLE
for the year 91,938 242,222
Profit for the year attributable to:  FE{5FEEHF -
Owners of the Company KABEA A 74,120 170,234
Non-controlling interests JEIER T 18,530 70,805
92,650 241,039
Other comprehensive (expense) ELEEEMEE FX%)
income for the year attributable as -
to:
Owners of the Company ATHEB A (570) 4,003
Non-controlling interests JEPERG HE (142) (2,820)
(712) 1,183
Total comprehensive income RIS FEZEmNE
for the year attributable to: 4a%E .
Owners of the Company P N/NEIEZ DN 73,550 174,237
Non-controlling interests IR e T 18,388 67,985
91,938 242,222
Net cash from operating REKEEB 2 RE
activities FEA 134,760 179,919
Net cash used in investing BREEESHZHE
activities R (225,774) (177,784)
Net cash used in financing BrmEEEscRle
activities FRE (9,629) (222,800)
Net cash outflow REmH 358 (100,643) (220,665)

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 2 2iR4EEHG R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ERa B HRRMGE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z202043/531HILF/Z

40.Event After Reporting Period 40. 3R HHAB FIE

On 19 February 2010, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and SJUM entered into a service agreement for
provision of management and promotion services to SJM in the
GEH casino (the “2010 Service Agreement”). Subsequent to 31
March 2020, this subsidiary entered into an addendum with
SJM for the continuation of the provision of these services.
Pursuant to this addendum, the term of the 2010 Service
Agreement has been extended to 26 June 2022, while the
Group’s entitlement to service fees and all other major terms
under the 2010 Service Agreement remain unchanged. Details
of the addendum were disclosed in the joint announcement of
the Company and Emperor International dated 13 May 2020.

158 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited & 2R 44 HEEHG R AF
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73%010&2)?195 KBz —REEE
BB A B RIEET I — (D IRFS ek UL
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FHBHEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ202043531HIFFZE

Results e |

Revenue WA aliEfeRDE 1,381,335 1,498,351 1,613,180 1,721,042
Profit before taxation BRIS AR 206,707 367,474 468,868 409,854 334,028
Taxation credit (charge) RIEE]HE () 75,738 70,823 38,862 18,796 (10,354)
Profit for the year FERH 282,445 438,297 507,730 428,650 323,674
Profit for the year attributable to: ~ FE{LFREHEF
Owners of the Company EREHEBA 263,915 367,492 393,574 346,490 256,224
Non-controlling interests JEPERR T 18,530 70,805 114,156 82,160 67,450

282,445 438,297 507,730 428,650 323,674

Assets and Liabilities BEERAERE

Total assets wEE Gl 6,241,192 6,869,560 6,827,331 6,518,420
Total liabilities e A (673,021)  (992,756) (1,348,756) (1,395,039)
Skl 5568,171 5,876,804 5,478,575 5,123,381

Total equity attributable to: =Nl e
Owners of the Company AATEEA LNl 4576308 3,989,968 3705339 3,443,041
Non-controlling interests IR R 1,010,251 991,863 1,886,836 1,773,236 1,680,340

gkl 5568,171 5,876,804 5,478,675 5,123,381

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 32 2R 44 EEFRA T 159
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
ES

At 31 March 2020 2020434 31H

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March 2020 are A& B 220203 831H 2 BB E = BF W
as follows: T

Completed Investment Properties BRRZIEEME

1. Shops of Ground Floor of the Grand Commercial 5,520 80
Emperor Hotel, Macau (EES
BRI 2 YR G 5 R IS E
2. 8th Floor of the Grand Emperor Hotel, Commercial 22,266 80
Macau [EES
BRI 2 YR L5 818
3. 10th Floor of the Grand Emperor Hotel, Commercial 22,266 80
Macau [EES
RIS 2 YR LIS 1018
4. Portion of Ground Floor and the whole of 1st  Commercial 24,200 100
Floor of the Inn Hotel Macau, Macau P

RPN B D R 1SR
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